LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF MANITOBA
Monday, 7 June, 1982

Time — 8:00 p.m.
CONCURRENT COMMITTEES OF SUPPLY
SUPPLY - EXECUTIVE COUNCIL

MR. CHAIRMAN, H. Harapiak: We're on Executive
Council, No. 1. General Administration; 1.(a) Premier
and President of the Council’s Salary.

The Leader of the Opposition.

HON.S.LYON: Mr.Chairman, weweretalkingearlier
about the meetings that the First Ministers had with
the Prime Minister and withtheotherPremiersand the
Prime Minister on economic matters. The question
arises out of the statements made by the Minister of
Mines and Energy, whoisheretonight, that heis off to
Alberta. As | understood, the report was to explain to
smaller oil companies in Alberta but they're welcome
to continue their exploration in Manitoba, and that
ManQil, the projected government oil company, will
not be any threatto them. | takeit thatstatement and
that policy, asexpressed by the Minister of Mines and
Energy, represents government policy. Does it, Mr.
Chairman?

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Minister of Energy and Mines.

HON. W. PARASIUK: Since | made this statement
and|'dlike tojustclarify for theLeaderofthe Opposi-
tionwhat| said. | said thattheresponse fromthe small
oil companies that operate in Manitobawasvery posi-
tive toward the establishment of a Crown oil and gas
company. They said that their cash flow situation was
very difficult, that they receive very little in the way of
tax expenditure incentives from the Federal Govern-
ment which is the major instrument of these types of
tax incentives. The big companies said that their
overheadwas suchthattheytendednotto operatein
areas of small potential like Manitoba because our
pools are small. Sincetheresponse fromtheexisting
oil companies was so positive, | thought that it would
be useful for me to talk to other junior companies in
Alberta and even Saskatchewan to indicate to them
what our long term policy was and what role a future
Crown oil and gas company could play in the way of
joint ventures.

| felt that since the response was so positive from
those already in Manitoba thattheresponsewould be
just as good from those who already are operating in
Alberta but perhaps don’t know that much about
Manitoba. | think that the oil industry in Manitoba
would benefit by having more people hereratherthan
fewer people here. We believe that we can be a cata-
lytic role in that respect and | think that the response
to date from the privatesectorhas been very positive.
Sothat would be the general thrust of what our policy
is.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Leader of the Opposition.

HON. S.LYON: | was merely going to suggest to the
First Minister that, given the statements by the Minis-
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ter of Mines and Energy previously made in the Com-
mittee of Supply, and his capsule version given here
tonight, wouldn'titbe ineveryone’'sbenefit if the Min-
ister and/or the Premier did not have to go to Alberta
or Saskatchewan or anywhere and defend or explain
awayManQil? Why do we haveto bother with ManQOil
whenwehavesuch a highlevelofexploration already
going on? What is to be gained by ManQil?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, | didn'tsensefrom
the comments by the Minister that he was going to
Alberta to explain away ManQil. That is, | think, the
leastofthe Minister’s concerns. All thatthe Ministeris
interested in doing, the government is interested in
doing, is encouraging oil development in Manitoba,
and if the Manitoba Oil and Gas Corporation, when
formed, assists in instrumentaly establishing further
oil development in Manitoba, so much the better.

HON.S.LYON: The First Minister, | take it then, does
not regard ManOil as being in the eyes of the private
sector, that is the entrepreneurial people in the oil
industry, as a prejudice totheircontinuing operation
in Manitoba.

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, not if it's on the
basis of a voluntary joint venture. Indeed, it may be
that in thecase of some ofthe smaller companies that
they would welcome the participation of Manitoba Oil
and Gas. They might be unable to proceed on their
ownotherwise. The oilcompanieshavecertainly, this
last while, been having some increasing difficulty,
capital accumulation wise.

HON.S.LYON: Mr. Chairman, we are all agreed that
the cash flow of oil companies from, | guess, Dome on
downissomethingthatMr.Trudeau’s national energy
policy has prejudiced in averysevereway. The further
question arises, given the words of support that are
uttered from time to time by members of this govern-
ment about PetroCan, has any direct or indirect
entreaty been made tothe Prime Ministeror any ofthe
Ministers of the Government of Canada with respect
to PetroCanjoining in oil exploration in Manitoba with
either ManQil or as a partner of some yet to be born
agency funded by taxpayers’ dollars?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Just so that| can be quite accu-
rate, insofar as the reporting on this, and since the
Minister is present, | would ask the Minister if he
would respond to that question.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Minister of Energy and Mines.

HON. W. PARASIUK: Yes, when | met with the Fed-
eral Minister of Energy, | indicated to him that Petro-
Can was involved in oil exploration and development
in other parts of Canada and that they hadn't been
involved to date in Manitoba, and we asked if they
would give consideration to being involved in Mani-
toba, That communication has been passed on to
Petro-Canada. They are a Crown corporation. They, |
hope, are considering it. | don’t know if they will be
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moving or not, but they indeed have something in the
order of a $900 million budget for this coming year
and we certainly would like to have some of that spent
in Manitoba, rather than having it all spent in Nova
Scotia or Newfoundland or the Beaufort Sea or
Alberta or Saskatchewan. We believe that we have
some potential here in Manitoba as well, so we have
asked them to consider doing some exploration work
in Manitoba, just as we've asked some of the large
companies to consider doing some exploration work
in Manitoba.

We haven’t received any definitive answers from
any of themyet, butl am hoping over the course of the
next six months or nine months or a year that we will,
in fact, receive some definitive action from some of
these large companies, be they a Chevron or an Esso
or a Petro-Canada.

HON.S.LYON: The Ministermay not beaware of the
difference between Chevron, Essoand Petro-Canada,
but many ofthe people of Canada are. They're becom-
ingmore and more aware of it, asinterestratesremain
high, as part of the price for Canadianizing the oil
industry, which the Federal Government has gotten
into. If my honourable friends wish any further cor-
roboration of that may | suggest that they read the
recent address given to the, | think it was, the Cana-
dian Club in Toronto by the President of the Bank of
Montreal. It will maybe make socialist hearts feel
warm and fluttery to see maple leaves all over gas
pumps in Canada, but it's at a price; and part of the
price, of course is the maintenance of high interest
rates in Canada because it has led to transference, as
Mr. Mulholland and others have tried to point out, a
transference of foreignequity into foreign debt, which
has had a very bad effect on our foreign exchange
situation, and has directly contributed to the mainte-
nanceofhighinterestrates, against which all members
of the NDP Government allege they are opposed.

That being the case, or that being an asidel should
say, did the First Minister, Mr. Chairman, have direct
conversations with the Prime Minister about Petro-
Canada and his willingness to want Petro-Canada to
explore for oil in Manitoba?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, | didn't have any
direct conversations with the Prime Minister in con-
nection with the involvement of PetroCan, but as is
earlierindicated, wewouldstillwelcome participation.

HON. S. LYON: Does the First Minister, Mr. Chair-
man, feel thatit's necessary to offer any specialincen-
tive for PetroCan to come and explore in Manitoba?

HON. H. PAWLEY: No. | would expect that they
would, if interested, come on the same basis as any
other company that might be interested in participat-
ing on ajoint basis with Manitoba. Also, | would hope
that, atsome point, they would consider development
on their own, in their own right, just as any other oil
company.

HON. S.LYON: Has PetroCan ever bid on any of the
oil leases thatare up for bid in Manitoba?

HON. H.PAWLEY: No, they haven't, not to this point.
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HON. S. LYON: They have the same freedom as any
other company in Canada. If they expressed an inter-
estorif they had an interest in Manitoba, to come here
and bid for oil rights the same as Omega or any of the
other smaller companies that are doing quite well in
southwestern . . .

HON. H. PAWLEY: Or Saskoil that has done
successfully.

HON. S. LYON: They have the same right?
HON. H. PAWLEY: Yes.
HON. S.LYON: Yet, they haven't seen fit to do it.

HON. H. PAWLEY: No. There are other companies
that haven't seen fit to, to the present time. | gather
Esso and some of the other large companies haven't
to this point.

HON. S. LYON: Isn’tit afactthat Shell and Gulf and
some of the companies that have had rights for some
time in southwest Manitoba, these rights are being
taken overbythesmallcompanieswhoare capable of
operating 10to 50-barrel wells aday, and havegained
a certain expertise in the:exploration and develop-
ment of these wells and are taking them over and
doing things that the large companies wouldn’t do,
PetroCan included. Isn’t that a fact?

HON. H. PAWLEY: | couldn’t speak for all cases.
Probably, in some cases, it would be and | would
hope, Mr. Chairman, thatin othercasesthatthelarger
companies would demonstrate some interest.

HON.S.LYON: Perhaps, | could ask then the general
question, because the Minister, who happens to be
here, has said that he has made submissions with
respect to PetroCan coming to engage in exploration
in Manitoba. What other large oil companies has the
Minister made direct contact with in the same veinin
ordertoencourage themto come to Manitoba along
with the tax supported company, PetroCan?

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Minister of Energy and Mines.

HON. W. PARASIUK: We have talked to Esso; we
have talked to Mohawk; we have talked to Chevron,
which has large holdings in Manitoba but which
haven'tbeendoingthatmuchto date. We have talked
to them and | hope that, over the course of the next
one to two years, their activity will increase signifi-
cantly. | hope to talk to some of the other large com-
panies over the course of the next two to three
months.

HON. S.LYON: Isthe First Minister or the Minister, in
the course of these conversations with the large oil
companies, including | presume PetroCan which has
to qualify in that category now even though it's a tax
supported company; | take it that assurances are
being given by the Minister and/or by the First Minis-
ter that the royalty system, which the previous gov-
ernment brought into being and which resulted in a
largeincreasein oil explorationinManitobaandsome
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developmentas well, | takeit that he's giving assuran-
ces that royalty system will be maintained and that
there will not be a return to the confiscatory royalty
system that obtained in Manitoba prior to 1977 and
which saw avirtual drying up of oil exploration in this
province?

HON. W. PARASIUK: We have said that we want
voluntary joint ventures. If we get involved, we said
we'reinterested in . . .

HON. S.LYON: I'm not talking about joint ventures.

HON. W.PARASIUK: Okay, I'mgettingto the answer,
though, fine. | also said that we didn’'t expect any
changes in royalties at this particular time; that we
wereinterested in the long-term development, that we
felt that asimplified royalty system did have animpact
and | had said that before in the committee. | also
indicated that | thought that the new oil reference
price had a pretty profound impact as well in terms of
the exploration. The third factor was that some of the
companies discovered oil at levels that they didn’t
expecttodiscoveroil at and this has created a flurry of
new activity as people are now reassessing some of
their old seismic tests and some of their old drill sites.
All of these factors have contributed to an increasein
attention in Manitoba.

One other factor beingthat oil companiesdrillingin
Manitoba have a probability, if they find anything, of
finding oil. That's in contrast to Alberta where they
have a probability of finding gas. When companies are
strapped for cash flow, finding oil is much preferable
to finding gas, so that's why alot of them are turning
their attention. These are some of the factors that |
hopetocommunicatetosomeof thejuniorsandeven
some of the larger companies through the course of
the summer and I'm hoping that this will lead to an
even greater increase in activity than we have wit-
nessed over the last six months.

HON. S. LYON: That’s encouraging, Mr. Chairman,
and, given the fact that this interest is continuing in
the sale of Crown oil leases, which the Minister him-
self was heard to be trumpeting a few weeks ago as
something that he was very proud of and so on, and
pointed out by the Member for Turtle Mountain that
this is a program that when it was brought in, however,
unless my memory is mistaken, was described in
some way as being some sort of a resource giveaway.
Does the First Minister still hold that view that the
changes in the royalty system for oil - which he, as |
recall, voted against - are some sort of a resource
giveaway now that he's going to maintain them?

HON. H. PAWLEY: | don't recall the context that the
First Minister is referring to. | think that, given the
circumstances, that the present arrangement is quite
satisfactory and certainly we're not unhappy with it.

HON. S.LYON: Well,isn’titafact, Mr. Chairman,that
when in Opposition the First Minister and his col-
leagues, when we reverted to the system of Crown
land oil lease sales, described that as a form of
resource giveaway?
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HON. H. PAWLEY: | cannot recall any comments of
my own on the subject. Maybe the Leader of the
Opposition can refer me to some comments, but |
don'trecall atthattime.Inanyevent, we've had oppor-
tunity to examine the system, to witness the result this
year of whatis happening, the increased activity, and
it'smy viewthatit would be lessthanwiseto makeany
change.

HON. S. LYON: Then | take it that it would be less
than wise, verging on foolhardy, to make any change
in the royalty structureto causeit torevertback to the
confiscatory royalty structure that was imposed by
the Schreyer Government of which the First Minister
was a prominent member. -
HON. H.PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, | indicated thatcir-
cumstances change, and | think what we must do,
regardless of what party we belongto, is be prepared
to recognize those changing circumstances, and cer-
tainly the circumstances are much different in many
respects now thanthey were a number of years ago,
and we are prepared to recognize that.

HON.S.LYON: | am the firstto admit, Mr. Chairman,
that circumstances are different thanthey werea few
years ago, because priorto 1977 there was hardly any
oil exploration going on under the regime of royalty
taxation and under the confiscatory back-in arrange-
ments that that NDP Government had imposed upon
the oil industry, with the result that they abandoned
Manitoba in terms of exploration. Our government
cameinandchangedit, againstthe anguishedcries of
the NDP at that time who talked about resource
giveaways and all such sloganeering, and now that
they are in office the First Minister is saying, but the
systemthat we have now that we brought in is a good
system. Is he preparedtosay nowthatthesystemthat
was brought in under the Schreyer Government
which resulted in no exploration was a bad system?

HON. H. PAWLEY: No, Mr. Chairman, as | earlier
indicated, the circumstances do change. What we do
believe though, and which the Leader of the Opposi-
tionisnot preparedtoendorse, isthatthereshould be
greater public participation and that's why we are
proposingtoestablish aprovincial Crown corporation.

| am more positive toward the joint participation on
the part of the public alone or in partnership with the
private oil sectorthaninchangingtheexistingroyalty
levels.

HON. S. LYON: Well, perhaps we can get another
definition changed. My honourable friend uses that
ubiquitous term “on behalf of the public.” Can we not
have an understanding around the Table that when a
government expropriates or joins in a joint venture
with a company, it is not the public who is engagedin
that joint venture, itis the politicians of the day and
they arebureaucrats. The public havevery littletosay
about it. That's part of the problem with nationaliza-
tion, and so if we can just rid ourselves of these
euphemisms about the public beinginvolved, then we
can get down to cases and understand that the First
Minister is still saying, notwithstanding the rather dis-
astrous experience of Manitoba Mineral Corporation
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in oil exploration in the period 1969-77, that he still
favours joint ventures with taxpayers’ dollars going
into such a high-risk venture as oil exploration, pray
tell on what basis?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, this is where | do
believe there's a very distinct difference in philoso-
phic and economic approach between the Leader of
the Opposition and ourselves on this side. | do not for
a moment accept the premise that the Leader of the
Opposition has submitted that to be involved in a
public way is restricted tothe government and to a few
top bureaucrats, that a public Crown corporation
such as Hydro, such as the Telephone System, such
as the Manitoba Public Insurance Corporation is
accountable. In the final analysis, the accountability is
to the public at large through the elected representa-
tives. If the elected representatives manage the Crown
corporations poorly, then it is the public that have the
final say as to change in government, the redirection
of policy so that there is accountability.

Insofar as the joint ventures, I'm rather surprised to
hear theLeader of the Opposition’scomments because
it seems to me it was the Leader of the Opposition,
while Premier, his government thatenteredinto ajoint
venture pertaining to Trout Lake. | believe it was the
Leader of the Opposition, while Premier, along with
his Minister of Mines, that was preparedtoenterintoa
joint venture pertaining to potash development, and
I'm certainly not critical of that, but I'm rather sur-
prised at the tenor of the Leader of the Opposition’s
remarks a few moments ago inregardto joint ventures.

HON.S.LYON: Mr. Chairman, |I'mrathersurprised at
the tenor of the First Minister's remarks because he’s
talking about joint ventures as being the "be all and
theendall,” whereas sensible peopleunderstand that
is an instrumentality to which one reverts when there
is need in the public interest to do so. It doesn't
become away oflife, which I'm sure that the ideologi-
cal preconditioning of my honourable friend would
lead one to believe is desirable, notwithstanding the
failures over the last 150 years since the ideawas first
conceived, but we can carry on that argument at
another time so long as my honourable friend can
assure, Mr. Chairman, the committee, but more par-
ticularly the people of Manitoba, that this Government
of Manitoba will not be foraging around with the tax-
payers’ dollar looking for ways to expend the taxpay-
ers’ dollar on high risk oil exploration in Manitoba
when there are private companies supported by the
private sector, by private investors, who are willing to
put their money into such high-risk ventures, who will
dothatatnorisktothetaxpayers of Manitoba,andthe
taxpayerof Manitobais still guaranteedthatheor she
will receive a fair and equitable return by means of a
royalty system brought into place by the previous
government which is fair, equitable and competitive
with other provinces.

HON.H.PAWLEY: | think the only responsetothatis
thattheLeaderofthe Opposition has a fixationinsofar
as the method of ownership and the method of
approach. Certainly, the experiences that Manitoba
has had in regard to SaskOil developing lands, oil
wellsinManitobaand Crownlandshasbeenrelatively
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successful. | don't know whether that makes the
results any more unpleasant as faras Manitobansasa
whole are concerned. There has been oil development
taking place. Much of the benefit from that has
accrued though tothebenefitof the people of Saskat-
chewan. | see noreason why, if SaskQil participatesin
modest development in Manitoba, that likewise the
Manitoba Government would not want to do some
participation especially when we're dealing with our
own Crown lands.

HON.S.LYON: Well, Mr. Chairman, we're not here to
answer for SaskOil or for its balance sheet.

HON. H.PAWLEY: It'sapretty good example though.

HON. S. LYON: Well, | don’t know that it is a pretty
good example. There's a Royal Commission that’s just
been struck in Saskatchewan to look into all of the
Crowncorps,totell the facts about them, so we'll find
out indue course whether it's agoodexample or not.
In the meantime, | think all we can know for a certainty
is that SaskOil bid on certain Crown oil leases in
Manitoba, wasthehighest bidder, was allowedtopar-
ticipate in that bidding along with all other private
sector companies and has proceeded with their
exploration program. That doesn’'t mean that we
acceptuntoourselves theparticularideological fetish
of the government which spawned SaskOil.

HON. H. PAWLEY: Well, | think that, in fairness to
Premier Devine of Saskatchewan, the Leader of the
Opposition should not leave a thought behind that
Premier Devine might be intending to dismantle Sas-
kOil because shortly after the election, as | recall his
statement, it was one of reaffirmation of the support
for all Crown corporationsin the Province of Saskat-
chewan, including SaskOil. So | think the Leader of
the Opposition wouldn't like to leave on record any
impression that the newly-elected Premier of Saskat-
chewan, Mr. Devine, isintendingtodismantlethe very
successful operations of SaskOil.

HON. S. LYON: | wouldn’t want to leave that on the
record,Mr. Chairman, any more than I'm sure the First
Minister would want to leave on the record his pre-
sumption that SaskOil is a successful company.

HON.H.PAWLEY: Well, Mr.Chairman, it appears the
Leader of the Opposition and myself have been in
somewhat different worlds because the information
that I've received is that SaskOil has been quite suc-
cessful in its oil development work in Manitoba.

HON. S. LYON: In Manitoba, Mr. Chairman, but |
can't . ..

HON. H.PAWLEY: | can't talk for Saskatchewan; I'm
talking for Manitoba.

HON. S. LYON: Nor can |, and | think that there are
other jurisdictions who can look after that better than
us, but the fact remains that my honourable friend
seems to have this preoccupation verging on a para-
noia about Manitoba having its own oil exploration
company, realizing as I'm sure he must from what



Monday, 7 June, 1982

smattering of business exposure he's had, that the oil
exploration business is one of the highest risk busi-
nesses going and realizing, if he would look at the
figures of Manitoba Mineral Exploration Company in
Manitoba, that their venture with about $1 million,
roughly, of taxpayers’ money into the oil business
during the time he was a member of the Schreyer
Government in the ‘70’s and so on, was nothing short
of being a failure. Now why would we want torepeata
failure in Manitoba under the name of ManOil or
whatever?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, all | can say to the
Leader of the Opposition, | have much more confi-
dence in the oil potential of Manitoba and the ability of
Manitobans —(Interjection) — yes, the ability of Man-
itobans to collectively maximize their returns from oil
development than obviously the Leader of the Oppo-
sition enjoys in the future of Manitoba.

HON. S.LYON: Mr. Chairman, my honourable friend
is becoming something like the Minister of Finance;
he’'s becoming a master of non sequiturs. Nobody’s
talking about the oil potential in Manitoba. We all hope
thatthe oil potential in Manitoba will be greater than it
is even at the present time. What we differ upon, and
my honourable friend surely has the intellectual
honesty to admit this, what we differ about is the best
method by which to develop that potential so, non
sequiturs notwithstanding, I'm not goingto be drawn
intothat kind of childish argument. | merely say to my
honourable friend that history, if not the history of the
world, if not the history of Manitoba, demonstrates
that ManQil, based on the example of Manitoba Min-
eral Exploration Corp. in the period of the Schreyer
years when they gotinto the business, theirintrusion
into the oil business was nothing less than a disaster
for the taxpayer. Surely to God the First Minister
should reconsider so that we won't be repeating
socialist disasters after socialist disasters justin order
that we may feel ideologically fluttery because we've
got an oil company in Manitoba which may make
Markx fuel happy, but it does damn little for the tax-
payers of Manitoba.

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, | don’t know just
where we're heading by way of this argument.
Obviously, the Leader of the Opposition and myself, |
think we respect each other’s views, but we have a
distinctly different point of view in regard to the best
approach of maximizing returns from natural resour-
ces in any given jurisdiction. It's my view that the
Crown corporation route can be one of a number of
instruments that can be used in given circumstances.

HON. S.LYON: Mr. Chairman, if the Crown corpora-
tion route has the effect of causing disinterest among
private corporations in the rest of Canada, | suppose
that doesn’t matter either, does it? Is that why the
Minister has to go out to Alberta and explain why
we're having a Crown corporation in Manitoba?

HON.H.PAWLEY: Well, Mr. Chairman, unfortunately
the Leader of the Opposition must have missed the
comments by the Minister of Energy and Mines.
There's been avery largeincrease sincethechangein
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government, so there doesn’t appear to be any fright-
ening away or losing interest. There’s much more
interest, as | understand it, at the present time than
there was say a year ago.

HON. S. LYON: Mr. Chairman, in the course of the
brief that was presented to the Government of Mani-
toba by the Manitoba Federation of Labour just a few
days ago, there was a suggestion made in the course
of the brief - and I'm just trying to put my finger on it
here. It seemstobeat(1);itseemstobesupportive of
the position that the First Minister is taking with
respect to ManOil, notwithstanding the pragmatic
track record of government investment in oil in
Manitoba.

Quoting from page 18, the quote reads as follows:
"“Public investment criteria must oversee the devel-
opment of the economy if the public interest is to be
met. Privateenterprise may play a prominentrole, but
government is the only institution which holds
responsibility for the public interest.”

Would the First Minister, Mr. Chairman, say that his
apparent desire to charge ahead with a state-owned
oil company at the expense of the taxpayers is part
and parcel of that statement by the MFL that public
investment criteria must oversee the development of
the economy? Does he not think that in the last 100
oddyearsthis province has done pretty wellunder the
private sectorwithoutsome supercommissarlooking
after the development ofthe economy in Manitoba?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, it seems to me that
in the past 100 years - in fact | think it's true in most
partsof Canada-we’'ve had a majorinjection of public
funds and public enterprise. | would hate to think, Mr.
Chairman, indeed, what would have been the case if
there had been a dogmatic doctrinaire view that,
under no circumstances any public investment. Need
| referthe Leader ofthe Oppositiontotheroads, tothe
schools, to the Manitoba Hydro System, to the Mani-
toba Telephone System, to the Manitoba Public Insu-
rance Corporation that are, | think, demonstrating a
model exampletothe rest of Canada by way of cover-
ageofinsurance, sothat publicinvestmenthasbeena
very important instrument of economic development
in Manitoba for many decades and | guess it's trans-
cended all types of governments and all political
philosophies.

HON. S.LYON: Mr. Chairman, | think the First Minis-
ter perhaps, and my reading may be at fault for that,
overlooked the operative word in the sentence. Public
investment, which nobody argues about, indeed, one
of my predecessors as Premier back in 1908 national-
ized the Bell Company in Manitoba and | doubt if he
could even have spelled “Marx.” He did it because it
was in the public interest to do it, so we need be read
no lecture on the advisability of utilities from time to
time being in the public sector. But here is the quote
from the MFL which seems to find favour with my
honourable friend: “Public investment criteria must
oversee the development of the economy” - oversee
the development of the economy.

Does the First Minister subscribe to the view that
public investment, the decisions that he and his col-
leagues make around the Table, must oversee the
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overall development of the economy in Manitoba?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, I'm not interested
really in getting into every nuance that's in any given
brief presented to us at any given time. | certainly am
of the view that government does have a responsibil-
ity, a very important responsibility, by way of its man-
date to provide economic direction, to provide eco-
nomic energy and complementing the role of the
co-operative and the private sector in the econom: .
Now, if that is what the MFL is saying, that's what |
would say.

HON. S. LYON: That, Mr. Chairman, | take it is
another instance where the First Minister didn'tinter-
rupt the reading of the brief the other day and say, “Do
you really mean that our government should oversee
the economic development in Manitoba?”

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, | wonder what the
record would be if we checked whether or not the
previous Conservative Government in Manitoba
responded to last year's MFL brief? In fact, I've heard
some reports that there was no response to that brief
on the part of the previous government.

What we were interested in doing, Mr. Chairman, is
listening to the submission just as we would listen to
any and all briefs. | find that this indeed was quite a
comprehensive and well articulated submission. At
some given point we will have an opportunity to
further review and to respond, but | believe from the
reports | have received that the First Minister and his
previous colleaguesdidn'trespondtolastyear’s brief.

HON. S. LYON: Well, I'm only going from memory,
Mr. Chairman, just to set the record straight and put
my honourable friend's mind at ease, my recollection
isthatlastyearthe MFL didn't dothe government and
the people of Manitoba the courtesy of coming to
deliver their brief, the main reason being that their
briefs of previous years hadbeenso full of “can’t” and
misstatements and they had been responded to in
terms of correcting the factsthat the MFL, in my esti-
mation and my recollection, couldn’t stand the heat of
the truth and chose not to come before the govern-
ment; that's the only reason they didn't come.

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, | guess here's
where wedo have alegitimate difference of approach.
When a group comes to make a presentation, and |
believe it was 10:30, 10:35, and | believe they had
one-and-a-halfhours to present their brief and, as the
Leader of the Opposition can see, it's a brief which
covers quite a number of pages, it's my view that the
Cabinetis theretolisten,tonotbecomeinvolvedinan
unnecessary hassle and argument; but we're a gov-
ernment that maybe we have learned from previous
times - and | would suggest the Leader of the Opposi-
tion maybe might as well - that maybeit's more impor-
tant to do more listening and less hassle in trying to
arrive at the truth.

HON. S. LYON: Mr. Chairman, I'm quite happy to
accept advice from the First Minister in the spirit in
whichit'sgivenand!l’m sure that he's equally happy to
accept advice from me with alittle bit more experience
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in this business than he has had, and that s this, that
any honest man standing still in the face of misstate-
ments which affect the public interest of Manitoba is
not serving the public interest of Manitoba, and I'm
sure that he'll take that in the same spirit in which he
was giving advice to me.

HON. H. PAWLEY: | can't . . .

HON. S. LYON: | “can’t” and misstatement have no
place.

HON.H.PAWLEY: | am just wonderingif the referen-
ces that the Leader of the Opposition makes to a
previous MFL brief as being full of misstatements and
“can't,” etc., really are not the result of simple differ-
ences of opinion that alarge public body had with the
previous government and, rather than accept it as a
difference of opinion, the Leader of the Opposition is
not castigating them as having been spreading a mis-
statement and “can't.”

HON. S. LYON: Mr. Chairman, where the Manitoba
Federation of Labour says that the private sector has
itspiaceand, in theirview, it'saverydiminished place
in the economy of Manitoba, and that governments
should not be rushing in to prop up the losers, |
believe, is the statement that is made in the course of
the brief; | can find it here specifically.

| wonder, when that statement was made, if the First
Minister didn't immediately ask the person reading
the brief whether or notthe MFL hadany objection to
the Governments of Manitoba and of Saskatchewan,
Alberta and Canada giving grants to the CCIL farm
machinery company. Do you suppose that was an
example of the governments rushing in to prop up
losers thatthey were referring to in their brief or did
that example never occur to anyone on that side?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, | have every confi-
dence that if the economy is improved overall and we
do establish a sane interest rate policy at the federal
leve! that there's no way CCIL is a loser. | have every
confidence that the Co-op Implements can be a suc-
cessful implement company in Manitoba and | regret,
indeed, that the Leader of the Opposition is more or
less in a blanket way condemning a very important
industry in Manitoba as being a loser. | think it's very
unfair to that industry and the many thousands of
farmers that are members of that particular
co-cperative.

HON. S. LYON: Mr. Chairman, my honourable friend
can continue trying to put words into my mouth. The
record will show that those were not my words, but
they are the words of the Manitoba Federation of
Labour-and| found the quote now on page 20- “Even
worse, they” - meaning governments - “rush in with
incentive grants to prop up failing enterprises in a bid
tosavejobs andend upsupportingallthelosersinthe
province. Incentivedealsend up passingtherisk onto
the public shoulders and leaving the profits in private
hands. Studies show that public handouts have little
effect on the location decisions of most industrial
firms. They are little more than a source of extra
revenue, a windfall, again.”
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My very simple question to the First Minister was did
he ask the MFL, when they were talking about prop-
ping up losers. whether or not they supported the
grants given by our government, the Governments of
Saskatchewan, Alberta and the Federal Government
and the current NDP Government to CCIL; did he
bother to ask them, or did he just accept this as an
example of their overall wisdom without pointing out
that there are occasions when governments have to
move in to give assistance to legitimate industries, or
did thateven occur to him?

HON. H.PAWLEY: No, Mr. Chairman. As|said a few
moments ago, | don’t consider the CCIL as being a
loser and, therefore, why would | ask the question?

HON. S. LYON: Well, perhaps then, Mr. Chairman,
when my honourable friend is responding to the MFL
he will ask them, as | think somebody around the
Tableinourgovernmentwouldhave,todescribewho
are the losers? Who are the losers that are being
propped up by government? Saunders Aircraft, King
Choy Foods; we can think of a few of those.

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, if the . . .

MR. CHAIRMAN: | would ask the members to wait to
beidentifiedbecause this is beingrecorded for Hans-
ard and it would be difficult in distinguishing who's
speaking.

HON.H.PAWLEY: Mr.Chairman,l amsure the Mani-
toba Federation of Labour would have been thinking
of,forexample, the prudence that was demonstrated
by the Minister of Economic Development in not sub-
mitting to the requests for financial assistance to
Sekine. The Chamber of Commerce, by the way, |
believe commended usinthatapproach. | am reminded
thatitwasthe Chamber of Commercethathasindeed
made similar representations to us as the MFL along
this line.

HON.S.LYON: Mr.Chairman, lhaveno furtherques-
tions for the moment.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Pembina.

MR. D. ORCHARD: The First Minister over the past
year or so and, | suppose, particularly as speculation
of an election was upon all Manitobans, including the
now First Minister, during the election the Leader of
the Opposition made a number of commitments to
agriculture and to the farm community and a number
ofthemappearintheirpolicy directions, the policies
of the New Democratic Party. If | might take the First
Minister’'s time, | would like to have him enlarge on
some of these promises and commitments that were
made to agriculture.

Now, the First Minister made reference to Manitoba
farm families being squeezed off the land. | think sta-
tistics will show that in the past three months there has
beenanalarmingincrease in the number of farms that
have been forced to sell out. They have been fore-
closed on or they have chosen to go out of business
because of punishing high interestrates, another ref-
erence that the First Minister has made. The First
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Minister made a commitment to those farmers that
would not be the case under his government, yet, we
see the statistics showing that clearly, since his
administration has taken office, there has been a dra-
maticincrease in farm bankruptcies and loss of farms.
All indications are that may indeed continue. Where
are the policies coming from that are going to save
these farm bankruptcies?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, unfortunately the
Member for Pembina was not here during the very
thorough and very comprehensive discussion thatwe
had this afternoon between the Leader of the Opposi-
tion and | pertaining to monetary policy. If the
Member for Pembinahadbeenpresenthewouldhave
had the answer at that time. Was he present?

MR. D. ORCHARD: You know, | am very sorry that |
wasn't here because | would like to have the First
Minister tell us just what his government has not been
able to deliver that they promised to the farmers of
Manitoba, in that they promised that there would be
no farm foreclosures, etc. Whatisitthat they havenot
been able to deliver to the farm community of
Manitoba?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, this government
has not failed to provide anything that it committed
itself to do insofar as the farm community is con-
cerned. It is my understanding that we were given a
five-year mandate, that we are six months into our
mandate and already, it is my understanding - | wish
the Minister of Agriculture was here with the exact
statistics, but | heard them only a few hours ago -
interestratereliefhas already beenprovidedtoavery
large number of farmers in the Province of Manitoba. |
am sure during the question period tomorrow, or
maybe even before the evening is out, we can obtain
thatinformationbutthere has been avery substantial
number of farmers that have received interest rate
relief from this government.

Secondly, | would like to emphasize to the Member
for Pembina because he may not fully grasp the
nature of the commitment, it was to deal with emer-
gency situationsrelating only to interest rate influen-
ces. ThelInterestRate Program hasbeen established;
it has received applications. | believe the figures -
there were 283 farmers have submitted applications
and had same approved. So there has been very sub-
stantial advance done in respecttothat in but six short
months out of a five-year mandate.

MR. D. ORCHARD: Mr. Chairman, that's very nice of
the Premier to tell us just exactly what he has done.
Would hecaretotellushow many of the between 200
and 300 farm sales that have taken place in the
months, primarily of April and May in the Province of
Manitoba in 1982, how many of those 200 - 300 farm
sales were caused by high interest rates?

HON.H.PAWLEY: Mr.Chairman, I think the member
would have to submit an Order for Return. | don't
know whether that is information in the possession of
the government or not. We could ascertain whether
we could obtain that information.
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MR. D. ORCHARD: You see, Mr. Chairman, that is
why | am asking these questions of the First Minister,
because his Minister of Agriculture does not know
thatkind of information. | was hopingthatthe ultimate
repository of knowledge was indeed with the Premier,
in that he could provide us with that kind of informa-
tion when his Minister has faited to be able to provide
that kind of information for us.

The First Minister undertook a number of commit-
ments to the farm community and it would seem that,
inretrospect, those commitments he had no intenticn
of fulfilling. They were simply election commitments
made to attempt to sway a certain number of votes
and, in fact, afterthe fact, when we see the number of
farm sales this spring, that the First Minister was not
really speaking knowledgeably when he said that he
was going to develop programs to prevent farmers
from being squeezed off the land, as he said in his
election promises. Is that not correct, Mr. First
Minister?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, | understand the
obvious disappointment that the former Minister of
Transportation and the Member for Pembina has, that
this government indeed in six short months has
already moved considerably towards achieving its
program. A number of steps have been undertaken.
The time has been limited, but there have been signifi-
cant and substantial moves to provide assistance to
the farm community. It's regrettable that some of
those moves were not taken some time ago, earlier.

MR. D.ORCHARD: | detect a tone in the First Minis-
ter’s voice that he would like to say that these farm
bankruptcies are a carry-over from the previous
administration. lhopethatisnotquitetruebecause he
has another, he says, five years of mandate. With the
assistance that heis providing to the rural communi-
ties, to the farm community, that trend of increasing
bankruptcies is going to be with him to haunt the
words he is saying tonight because, Mr. Chairman,
statistics will be out probably in the next several
months that will clearly demonstrate that farm bank-
ruptcies and farm closures increased dramatically
this spring, despite the promise by this First Minister
and his government that such foreclosures would not
occur if they were elected; that they would have an
Interest Rate Relief Program that would assist and
prevent farm closures from high interest rates.

HON. H. PAWLEY: | don’t know where the Member
for Pembina has been these past few weeks and
months, but there is an Interest Rate Relief Program
and |, justafewmoments ago, indicated that there had
already been 275 to 300 applications that had been
received and approved.

MR.D. ORCHARD: Mr. Chairman, that must be more
recent information than we got last Thursday night
from his Minister of Agriculture because | believe the
numbers then were something like 103 approvals.

Now, could the First Minister indicate whether
the 30 percent of the farmers who are not eligible
for the Interest Rate Relief Program, if any of those
would be going out of business because of the high
interest rates?
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HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, | don’t have that
information in front of me.

MR. D. ORCHARD: | wonder if the First Minister,
along with his Minister of Agriculture, might attempt
to provide that information at a later date?

HON. H. PAWLEY: We would have to see what we
have by way of information. The Member for Pembina
ought to realize and he could indeed help us a great
deal by joining with us overall because we have
always said this is a limited program at a provincial
leve! to assist us in registering some message to the
Federal Governmentinsofar as overall monetary pol-
icy is concerned. Maybe the Member for Pembina
wouidbe more effective if he would redirect his atten-
tion to where the real basic problem exists. In the
meantime, we should join together to do what we can
in the limited financial and jurisdictional means that
we have available to preserve as many farms as we can
inthe province untilwe do enjoy some greater degree
of sanity in Ottawa in interest rate policy.

MR. D. ORCHARD: Do | determine from that last
comment thatis where the real problem that the First
Minister refers to lies?

HON. H. PAWLEY: | never thought there was much
question as to where the real responsibility for the
high interest rates rests.

MR. D. ORCHARD: | can only comment how quickly
things change from a government of federal co-
operation to one of fed-bashing; it's amazing.

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, | would like to
respond to that. | would like to assist the Member for
Pembina because he apparently doesn’t understand
the difference between governments scrapping and
quarrellingoveruseless debates involving jurisdiction
and honest disagreements between governments as
to basic policy. We willhave our differences of opinion
with the Federal Government pertaining to fiscal
transfer payments, in respect to interest rates, in
regardtoCrowrate; | don’'tconsider that fed-bashing,
| consider thattobe freedom of expression within our
democratic society astodiffering points of view; that
is quite different than fed-bashing, provincial bash-
ing, interfering with the delivery of programs.

MR. D. ORCHARD: | hope the Federal Government
recognizesthatsubtledifferencethatthe Premier has
alludedtotonight. Inthe policies of the Manitoba New
Democratic Party, the First Minister indicated by
statement here that, while the Conservatives sat on
their hands, almost 40 percent of Manitoba hog pro-
ducers left production. Would the First Minister care
to give us the source of that information, the back-up
that allowed him to make that kind of a statement
available to all Manitobans; | assume, a factual
statement?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, that information
could be obtained. We don’thave it with us this even-
ing, but that could be obtained.
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MR.D. ORCHARD: Mr. Chairman, | would very much
appreciate the First Minister providing me with that
information that led to this statement in his policy
document, because it does contrast quite starkly to
the 17th Annual Report for the year ended December,
1981 of the Manitoba Hog Producers’ Marketing
Board, wherein the Chairman, one Bill Vaags, says,
“To my surprise and that of many experts, Manitoba
held its . production base almost constant.” That's
quite a difference from the, presumably factual, 40
percentreduction in the production base that the First
Minister told all Manitobans was part of his research.

HON.H.PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, wearedealingwith
a considerable period of time and | want to tell the
Member for Pembina, because maybe he didn't note
but I did, that indeed farmers in general in the Prov-
ince of Manitoba were recognizing the fact that many
hogproducers had gone out of businessovera period
oftime in the Province of Manitoba. Itwas not news to
the farmers of Manitoba. It may have been to the
Member for Pembina, but it certainly wasn't to the
large number of farmers that | spoke to over the past
year.

MR. D. ORCHARD: It's sort of interesting that great
grasp and knowledge of the hog industry that the First
Minister has was not shared by Bill Vaags, the Chair-
manofthe ManitobaHog Producers Marketing Board.
It'sveryinteresting thatthe First Minister has a greater
knowledge of the hog industry than the chairman of
that industry does.

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, | didn't think any-
body had made any such suggestion. If the Member
for Pembinawants to go down some devious courses
in his conclusions he arrives at, he's welcome to do so.

MR. D. ORCHARD: Mr. Chairman, | suggest that the
devious route was taken by the First Minister when he
signed and delivered to all Manitobans policies of the
New Democratic Party. | think that was when the
deviousroute was taken, nottonight when | am asking
him where he got his facts from, where he says, “40
percent of hog producers left production here,” and
the Chairman of the HogMarketing Commission says,
“The base remains almost constant.” The devious
route was taken by the First Minister when he was
Leader of the Opposition campaigning forre-election
in the province, not by myself.

Mr. Chairman, prior to the election and during the
election, the First Minister made a number of state-
ments about the need for a beef income stabilization
program and | think, if | can paraphrase some of the
often made statements by the Leader of the Opposi-
tion whilst he was campaigning and by the Premier-
elect after the election, he said that his government
would not wait around studying the situation, that
there would be a beef stabilization program for the
beef producers of the province in a matter of weeks
and they wouldn't sit around and wait for months. It
would only be weeks before they would have a beef
stabilization program.

Now, | full well realize thatthe First Ministeris going
to tell us tonight that, yes, indeed, his Minister of
Agricultureisinthe midst of developing a beef stabili-
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zation program. But, it has now gone well into six
months, as the First Ministersays, and hedid indicate
that it would not go beyond weeks before he had a
beef stabilization program.

One ofthe problems his Minister of Agriculture has
with his Beef Stabilization Program is its six-year
term, number one, and thatisn’t the biggest problem.
The biggest problem is the compulsory marketing
aspect of that Beef Income Assurance Plan. Is the
FirstMinister goingtoinstruct his Minister of Agricul-
ture, afterhehashad his review group of producers, to
drop the compulsory marketing aspect of the first
proposed plan so that he can get on with delivering
one other promise to rural Manitobans, that being a
meaningful beef stabilization program developed in
true consultation with the beef producers and notin
consultation with BillJanssenandsome oftherecycled
agricultural bureaucrats of 1977 and prior.

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, | know that the
member for Pembina has his own particular hangups
as to the kind of program he would like to see evolve.
What the Minister of Agriculture is doing, and | com-
mend him for doing it, is that without delay he com-
menced consultation with the beefproducers in Mani-
toba.Dearme,therewasalongtimepriortoNovember
1981 that they should have already commenced that
kind of consultation, the unfolding of that kind of
program for Manitoba farmers; unfortunately, nothing
had been done. Wetook government November 30th
and my Minister of Agriculture, | think, without
unreasonable delay commenced aprocess ofconsul-
tation. Heis now doing his maximum best to work out
aprogramthatis fairand satisfactory and equitable to
all concerned.

MR. D. ORCHARD: You know, that sort of flies in the
face of theimmediate actionthatwas promised, notin
months butinweeks,bythe First Minister,byyourself,
immediately after the election. You have already had
your Minister of Agriculture hang yououttodry foran
additional six months, whilst you promisedimmediate
action. So far, the action of your Minister of Agricul-
ture has been a couple of very interesting things.

Firstofall, he firedthe committee thatwasstudying
beef income program; that was the first thing he did.
Thenthe next thing he did was developed a program
that the majority of the beef producers don't want
anything to do with. My question to you was, Mr. First
Minister, are you going to have your Minister of Agri-
culture drop the compulsory marketing requirement
of any beef income planthathe’s going to bringin, or
areyougoingtoliveanddie by hisinsistence on that
marketing commission that the majority of the beef
producers do not want?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, first and foremost,
the commitment was to immediate consultation, not
to a program within weeks, but immediate consulta-
tion. Insofar as the nature of the program, that is the
process that is under way at the present time, to
develop that program in consultation with beef pro-
ducers. Obviously, there will always be some dis-
agreementwhen any government attemptstodo any-
thing. | suppose, our bestcourse ofaction would have
been to have sat by and done nothing, like the pre-
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vious government did for one year, and then there
would be no debate this evening about the nature of
the program because there would be nonetodiscuss.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Minister of Agriculture.

HON. B. URUSKI: Mr. Chairman, it appears that the
Member for Pembina, in his usual self, is trying to
bring forward not only red herrings but information
that isn’t quite as one might put it, especially in his
terms. Mr. Chairman, the Member for Pembina inci-
catedthat theinformation brought forward, insofaras
the constancy of production of hogs in Manitoba, had
remained constant in the year 1981.

HON. H. PAWLEY: That's what he said, yes.

HON. B. URUSKI: While one doesn't dispute the fig-
ures of the production of hogs being constant, Mr.
Chairman, but the Manitoba Hog Producers Market-
ing Commission during their survey in the first three
months of 1981, prior to finally . . .

HON.H.PAWLEY: Isthatthesamereportthe member
was reading from? Well!

MR. B. URUSKI: ... finally indicating that while pro-
duction remained fairly constant the numbers of pro-
ducers declined substantially. Infact,Mr. Chairman, if
one —(Interjection)— Well, he said it remained the
same. Mr. Chairman, if one looks atthe Annual Report
which the member quoted from - | think its the same
colored report, the 17th Annual Report - when one
looks at the number of units that are quoted in the
reportshown for 1980, and | quote from thatreporton
page 6, “4,352 active production units in 1980, and a
total of 3,759 active units in 1981,” Mr. Chairman.
These units wouldhavebeenthe family farmunits, the
smaller units admittedly so, that | am advised that he
was talking about, Mr. Chairman.

It is exactly thattype of mentality, the Conservative
mentality over the four years, that the people of Mani-
tobareallysawthrough and made sure that their ver-
dict was very clear on November 17th, Mr. Chairman.
The Member for Pembina - they finally announced a
program in April of 1981 for $10 million. In fact, the
former Minister of Finance is sitting in this committee
where, when they announced this $10 million pro-
gram and several weeks later, when we were discus-
sing the Estimates, there was no provision for the $10
million; there was provision for a $5 million figure. At
that moment in time, even before the program was
developed and the program didn’t come into play until
September of that year, Mr. Chairman, until Sep-
tember of 1981 when the program came into being
and they announced it in April, and in May, when we
were discussing the Estimates, the former Minister of
Finance indicated then already that they did not think
that they would require the funds as a result; they
didn’t need those funds.

While they originally made a $10 million announce-
ment and they were only asking for authority tospend
$5 million, lo and behold, Mr. Chairman, before the
end of the fiscal year, this government had to make
provision to provide loan guarantees through the
Manitoba Agricultural Corporation to, in fact, live up
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tothecommitmentsthattheToriesdidn't live up to, to
their own producers, to the producers of Manitoba, in
the Hog Stabilization Program that they heralded as
being the saviour of the hog industry in this province.
They couldn’t even get their numbers straight, Mr.
Chairman. That is the kind of well thought out, well
planned, well financially executed programsthatthey
were delivering, Mr. Chairman.

In 1977, the then Leader of the Opposition, the
former Premier of this province, indicated, whenthere
was a vote called on the beef marketing plan in the
Province of Manitoba, andtold farmersthat they were
being coercedbecause they were given avoteon the
beef marketing plan. He indicated in 1977 thatit would
be his government that would come into power and
work with the producers, the beef . . .

MR. CHAIRMAN: Point of Order.

MR. B.RANSOM: Mr.Chairman, I'mnotquiteclear of
the procedure that'sbeing followed here. | believe that
it's customary, when we are dealing with the Esti-
matesof the Executive Council, thatnormally members
of the Legislature have an opportunity to question the
First Minister and others wishing to speak normally
get on a speaking list. | believe, Mr. Chairman, that
there may be others on the speaking list prior to the
Minister of Agriculture.

MR. CHAIRMAN: | believe that the Member for Pem-
bina asked a question in the agricultural field and the
First Minister asked —(Interjection)— well, | believe
he deferred it to the Minister of Agriculture which |
believe is perfectly in order.

The Minister of Agriculture.

MR. B. RANSOM: Further, on the point of order then,
Mr. Chairman. The procedure that we're following
now, according to your rulingwhich | believe has not
been followedin my experience, is that the First Minis-
ter is going to ask the Ministers to respond on his
behalf withrespecttoquestionsandsuchasareinthe
area of agriculture.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The same point of order.

HON. H. PAWLEY: Just on the point of order, | think
Hansard will indicate that | didn't ask the Minister to
participate, but all members from my recollection and
from the Rules are entitled to participate in the Esti-
mates. The Member for Pembina made some serious
allegationsinvolving the operations of the Agriculture
Minister. Is he surprised that there would be a desire
on the part of the Agriculture Minister now to inter-
vene in the debate.

MR. D. ORCHARD: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The
news that the Minister of Agriculture brought us that
the First Minister didn't have was rather refreshing.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Point of privilege. The Minister of
Agriculture.

HON. B. URUSKI: Mr. Chairman, on a point of privi-
ledge. | was not finished my remarks when | was inter-
rupted by the Member for Turtle Mountain. Mr.
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Chairman, when the Member for Turtle Mountain rose
or indicated a point of order, | was not finished my
remarks because the Member for Pembinahas made
certain statements in this committee.

MR. CHAIRMAN: | recognized the Minister of Agri-
culture and | believe that, as the Chairman, | can
recognize whoever puts up his hand. It very clearly
states that | can recognize people with opposing
views. | am sure that it would be opposing views from
the Member of Pembina and the Ministerof Agriculture.

MR. B. RANSOM: On a further point of order, Mr.
Chairman, may | ask you thenthe method of operation
that you are using? Normally, in this committee, the
past practice has been that the Chairman has main-
tained a list. When someone wishes to speak they so
signalto the Chairman. The Chairman acknowledges
itand theirname goesonthelistand whentheirname
comes up they have an opportunity to speak. If thatis
not the procedure that is being followed, Mr. Chair-
man, then | would like to know.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Previously | had kept lists, but this
eveningtheredidn'tseemto be much participation so
| did not keep a list. So | have no list this evening.

MR. B.RANSOM: Mr.Chairman, perhaps you would
acknowledge that | had signalled my intention to
speak in this debate prior to the Minister of Agricul-
ture coming in?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Yes, | would acknowledge thatyou
raisedyour hand to participate, priortothe Minister of
Agriculture coming in.

HON. B. URUSKI: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

MR. CHAIRMAN: | had recognized the Minister of
Agriculture and | believe he should finish his
comments.

HON. B. URUSKI: | am sure that the Member for
Pembina will want to continue the debate, Mr. Chair-
man. As | was indicating in my remarks, thatin 1977
theformerPremier of thisprovince, thethenLeader of
the Opposition’ had promised Manitoba cattle pro-
ducers that if they turned down the vote on the Beef
Marketing Board, it would be his pledge that his gov-
ernment would sit down with beef producers. He was
quoted in the paper, in the Winnipeg Free Press, whe-
rein he indicated that he would sit down with the beef
producers and work out a mutually acceptable plan
forthe benefit of beef producers in this province.

That statement, of course, in that program never
came about. In fact, in the summer of 1981 when the
Member for Arthur, the former Minister of Agriculture,
was approached by the Cattle Producers Association
asking him for assistance, he indicated to them there
was no assistance to be had to the cattle industry and
that they were turned down by that government.

MR. D. ORCHARD: Point of order, Mr. Chairman.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Point of order.
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MR. D. ORCHARD: Yes, Mr. Chairman, | believe the
Minister of Agriculture was attempting to straighten
out an indication of 40 percent of Manitoba hog pro-
ducersleft production. He has seemingly done that by
reference to this report and | suggest that he is not
quite in order to the point he was trying to straighten
out on behalf of his beleaguered First Minister. If you
would kindly end his conversation - we have heard all
this before - so we can get on with the Estimates.

MR.CHAIRMAN: The Minister of Agriculture says he
is leading up to the question that you had asked.

MR. D. ORCHARD: On the hogs.
MR. CHAIRMAN: The Minister of Agriculture.

HON. B. URUSKI: Mr. Chairman, the member may
notlike my comments thatl am makingtoday, butthe
fact of the matter is while the Annual Report is year-
over-year - and | will get back to that Annual Report -
but| mentioned earlier with respect to the numbers of
producers who left hog production in the first three
months of 1981, it was in the figure of approximately
1,500 producers had ceased production during that
period of time. Those figures were given to us by the
Manitoba Producers HogMarketingBoardduringthe
first quarter of 1981. Those are the figures that were
used in terms of the numbers of producers who
ceased producing hogs in the Province of Manitobain
the 1981 period. There was anetreductionofapprox-
imately 600 producers from year-to-year, where they
ceased complete year-over-year, Mr. Chairman, but
the fact of the matteris that during the first quarter of
1981, approximately 37 percent, almost 40 percent, of
producers ceased producing hogs in the Province of
Manitoba. Those figures were supplied to us by the
Manitoba Hog Producers Marketing Boardduring the
first quarter of 1981.

Specifically, Mr. Chairman, withrespecttothefiring
of the so-called committee dealing with beefthat the
Member for Pembina made mention of, | wantto indi-
cate to the honourable member that no one was fired
in terms of the committee. The committee was called
during the throes of the election campaign set up by
the then Conservative administration to look into the
beefindustry and make recommendations. The com-
mittee was set up as all members of the MCPA and |
want to indicate to the honourable member that we
have asked for input. They have, in fact, given us
recommendations of two members and in fact three
members of their association now sit on our Advisory
Board, actually an additional member than they had
originally recommended to sit on the Advisory Board
to work out the beef plan.

So, Mr. Chairman, they are involved in the process.
No one was fired, but I did not accept that one commit-
tee made up of a single group in society would be the
only committee that would be used to develop a Beef
Income Assurance Plan in the Province of Manitoba.
We wanted the widestrepresentation possible fromall
groups in the industry and we have, from producers,
chosenasgoodagroupasany and as awide-ranging
group, in terms of views, in the industry as any gov-
ernment could to provide him with information in the
development of this program.
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MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Pembina.

MR. D. ORCHARD: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | have
another question for the Minister of Agriculture. How
many public meetings have been held to explain this
program, number one, to the cattle producers in the
different districts, and . . .

MR. CHAIRMAN: | think now we are getting really off
the beaten path.

MR. D. ORCHARD: Well, isn’t that new, Mr. Chair-
man?Isn’tthat new? Mr. Chairman, | takeitlamnotto
ask the Minister of Agriculture any questions?

MR. CHAIRMAN: No.

MR. D. ORCHARD: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. |
appreciate that. Now, if | can ask a question of the First
Minister as | started out doing tonight?

Mr. Chairman, the First Minister in this election
document, “Policies of the New Democratic Party of
Manitoba,” indicated that Manitoba New Democrats
would introduce a program to assist young farmers
entering agriculture. Now, my question to the First
Minister is that, in view of the fact that there are no
longer any applications being accepted from young
farmers for the purchase of land by MACC, and |
believe that's at the direction of this Minister of Agri-
culture, would the First Minister assure this commit-
tee and the people of Manitoba that he will not allow
his Minister of Agriculture, between Sessions, to
introduce the Land Lease Program without proper
scrutiny and alternate policy development to be pres-
ented by the Opposition; that he won't wait for the
Sessiontobeoverandsneak thelLand Lease Program
in the back door? Will he give us that assurance
tonight?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, | think | would be
most unwise to make a commitment of that nature to
the Member for Pembina. Obviously, it's a time of flux
andofchangeinregardtothe agricultural community
and| think we have tobe in a positiontorespondtothe
needs and the requests of the farm community.
Obviously, at the same time any program that we do
implement of any nature, between now and the com-
mencement of the next Sitting, as long as we have
legislative authority for same, we are accountable to
the Opposition at that time. So 1 don't see why | would
make that kind of commitment this evening at all,
based upon some concerns thatthe MemberforPem-
bina and his colleagues are expressing this evening.

MR. D. ORCHARD: Then, since the First Minister is
unwilling is give this committee and the House that
assurance, then would he try to give us this assurance
that if his Minister of Agriculture, after the Session
prorogues so that he is beyond the scrutiny of ques-
tion period and members of Her Majesty’'s Loyal
Opposition in the House, if his Minister of Agriculture
tries to bring in the Land Lease Program, will the First
Minister also insist that he offers a parallel program of
long-term mortgage monies available to those same
young farmers, with a discounted interest rate which
would reflect the kind of subsidy provided by the Pro-
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vincial Government in writing down the yearly rental
on land-lease lands; and offer that same kind of sub-
sidy in a larger interest rate reduction to those same
young farmers because the costs to the people of
Manitoba are identical whether it's a subsidized lease
of land under land lease or a subsidized interest rate,
the only difference being that in the long-term mort-
gage with the young farmers owning the land? That's
the basic difference. The government doesn’t own it;
the young farmer does.

So would he give us the assurance that if his Minis-
ter of Agriculture bringsin land lease they will offer a
comparable subsidization to the interest rate applied
to long-term loans so that the young farmers of Mani-
tobacanchoosebetween the governmentowningthe
land andthey own the land, all to the same cost to the
taxpayers of Manitoba?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, | really do believe
thatitwould beless than wiseto betossingtogethera
program tonight or making commitments based upon
hypothetical situations that may or may not occur
over the next six months.

ME. D. ORCHARD: Mr. Chairman, thisis nota hypo-
thetical situation unless the First Minister intends on
breaking another one ofthe promises to Manitobans
that he made in this, because he has said in here that
Manitoba New Democrats would introduce a program
to assist young farmers entering agriculture. There is
no such program now because his First Minister has
eliminated long-term land mortgages to young
farmers. So, if he's going to carry out this promise in
this, “Policiesofthe New Democratic Government,” |
want the assurance from the First Minister that if he
brings in land lease after he's beyond the scrutiny of
the Opposition, will he also offer young Manitobans a
written-down interest on a long-term mortgage at the
same cost to the taxpayer and give the young farmer
the choice between the government owning the land
and him owning theland? That's all | ask. | don’t want
any behind the scenes manoeuvering and manipulat-
ing by his Minister of Agriculture to the detriment of
agriculture and, particularly, to young people enter-
ing agriculture.

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, | will get the state-
ment that | issued during the campaign. In fact, what
the memberis asking me to do, the Minister of Agricul-
ture will obtainsame.Whatthe Member for Pembinais
attempting to get me to do is contrary to what | com-
mitted myselftododuringthe campaign. | said in Vita
during the campaign that we would not lend money to
farmers for purposes of purchasing land. That was
during the campaign that | made that statement; it was
duly reported.

MM. D. ORCHARD: Then | take it that the only way
that the First Minister intends to keep his promise of
introducing a program to assist young farmers enter-
ing agriculture is via the land lease program then. Is
that what he's telling us tonight?

HON. H. PAWLEY: No, Mr. Chairman. It will be of
assistance to the Member for Pembina because | do
have the statement that was issued during the cam-
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paign and the emphasis was upon monies for Debt
Consolidation.

MR. D. ORCHARD: Mr. Chairman, Debt Consolida-
tion will be available tothose who are already in farm-
ing. Your promise, Mr. Premier, and | read it to you
again is, “Manitoba New Democrats would introduce
a program to assist young farmers entering agricul-
ture,” not in agriculture and needing debt consolida-
tion, entering agriculture. Do | read between the lines
as towhat the First Ministeris tellingustonight in that
heisgoingtorefuselong-term money through MACC
toyoung farmers - next year, the year after, therest of
this year - and only allow new farmers entering agri-
culture to do so via the Land Lease Program and not
give them the option of owning their own land?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, there obviously is
somedifficulty on the part of the Member for Pembina
andwhatheisreading, what heisunderstanding. The
program announcement involved monies for debt
consolidation, monies for operating capital and
equipment. Maybe, it would be of assistance to the
Member for Pembina that's havingsome trouble if we
went onto something else and | was able to provide
him with that statement that was issued during the
campaign.

Secondly, | would remind the Member for Pembina
that we will not be rushed into a program that the
farmers of Manitoba would find not satisfactory, that
we willbe developing our program over the four years
of our mandate, five years of our mandate, which isthe
commitment that we gave to the people of the Prov-
ince of Manitoba.

MR. D. ORCHARD: | would like to remind the First
Minister that on September29 of 1981, in a report from
the Legislature to his constituents, heindicated, and |
wouldtake itthat he committed himself, as Premier, to
developing a comprehensive Interest Rate Relief Pro-
gram that would assure that no farm, no home, or no
business be lost due to high interest rates. That was
prior to the election in a legislative report by the then
Leader of the Opposition. During the election cam-
paign, inthe constituency of Springfield, whilst meet-
ing with a group of hog farmers and farmers in the
area,the pressreportedthatonce again the Leader of
the Opposition indicated that he would develop, if
elected and forming the government, a program to
guarantee that no farm, no home, no business be lost
due to high interest rates. Now, obviously, the First
Minister believed that he could do that sufficiently
enough to sign this document. | believe he signed it;
the First Minister might want to confirm that’s his
signature. | believe it's his picture although that’s in
question sometimes, but he indicated in here, “With
ManOil and Manitoba Hydro, we can develop pro-
grams to guarantee that no Manitobans lose their
homes or farms due to high interest rates.”

Now, in view of the fact that the Minister of Agricul-
ture on February 5, 1982, put out a press release in
which he said, “Mr. Uruski stressed the program is
geared to assisting those homeowners with low or
moderate income and smaller businesses and farms
in economic hardship as a result of high interest
rates.” Mr. Uruski went on further to say, “This is
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consistent with the government’s commitment that we
would not be prepared to use tax dollars except in
hardship cases,” not quite what the First Minister had
said in his report from the Legislature, his election
promises and in this document. But, nevertheless,
that's what his Minister of Agriculture is saying on
February 5, 1982. Mr. Uruski goes on further to say,
“The program was not intended to provide a general
measure of interestrate relief to all, but only to those
least able to cope with the current protracted period of
high interest rates.”

My question to the First Minister is, did you know
that your Minister of Agriculture in developing the
Interest Rate Relief Program was stabbing you in the
back and making your election promises null and
void?

HON. H.PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, | feelratherembar-
rassed trying to answer those kinds of questions,
because | don't know really whether the Member for
Pembina is just trying to be cute or is indeed sincere
when he asks questions of that nature. | will gladly
providetothe Member for Pembinathe statement that
was issued during the campaign as well. There is no
inconsistency between the statement by the Minister
of Agriculture and the statement that was issued dur-
ing the campaign.

| am very pleased indeed, Mr. Chairman, as | menti-
oned, that substantial progress has been made in a
very short period of time to deal with these extreme
cases where people are losing their farms or their
homes ortheir small businessessolelyduetointerest.
There has been substantial progress and | would have
hoped that, rather than trying to score - 1 don’t know -
political points, that the Member for Pembina would
be joining with us in providing some constructive
proposals, if indeed he has same, as to how the pro-
gram can be better communicated, how it can be
betteradministered. That would be much more useful
thanreally trying to - itis uptothe Member forPem-
bina as to how he performs - but he might be much
more effective asfaras beingaccepted by the farmers
of the Province of Manitoba if he would.

MR.D. ORCHARD: TheFirst Ministerused a very key
word, and | compliment him for it. He used the key
word ‘sincerity’ and that is exactly what we are trying
to determine; whether he, as Leader of the Opposi-
tion, was sincere when he made these promises. You
know, it wasn'tmembers of the Progressive Conserva-
tive Party that signed thisdocument. It was you, Sir, as
Leader of the Opposition and now Premier of this
province that signed this document that said, pro-
grams to guarantee that no Manitoban would lose his
home or farm due to high interest.

You mentionedsincerity. | am asking you; wereyou
sincere when you signed that, Mr. Premier?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, | think the people
of the Province of Manitoba will pass their judgment
and | have no hesitation as to how they will pass their
judgment. In view of the very substantial efforts that
we have undertaken to provide assistance-you know,
Manitobans are much more sophisticated than the
Member for Pembina seems to recognize Manitobans
tobe. | find them tobevery sophisticated, very knowl-



Monday, 7 June, 1982

edgeable, very understandabie, to know full well the
limitationsthat Provincial Governmentis up against. |
find also that they are very appreciative of the efforts
that we are undertaking against very extreme odds to
provide this kind of assistance. | also know that Man-
itobans are generally rather pleased that already
some significant progress has been made.

Often, governments will leave commitments to the
second, third, fourth or even the fifth year to fulfill.
This government has already made substantial pro-
gress in the first six months. In fact, | think if there ’s
any criticism, maybe insome ways we have attempted
to move too quickly on some of our commitments.

MR. D. ORCHARD: You know, | won't belabour the
points, but the Minister still hasn’t indicated whether
he was sincere when he signed this document, and |
don’t suspect he will if he's . . .

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, all | need say to
you, | am not depending upon the Member for Pem-
bina to judge my sincerity or lack of sincerity. | will
depend upon the people or the Province of Manitoba
to make that sort of judgment.

MR. D. ORCHARD: The First Minister also called
upon me to provide him with some constructive criti-
cism.lwoulddothatrightnowand| hopehetakesitto
heart.

Please, Mr. First Minister, open up your Interest
Rate Relief Program to farmerstoinclude the majority
of the 30 percent of the farmers in Manitoba that you
have excluded by your criteria. That would be my first
suggestion to you. Secondly, in developing your beef
marketing program, drop your insistance on a com-
pulsory marketing commission for all those enrolled
in the program. Those are my two suggestions.

Mr. Chairman, | have one other question of the First
Minister. Once again, itfollows up from acommitment
made by the First Minister in the “Policies of the New
Democratic Party. “ The policy basically is to take
steps to relieve the interest burden facing families
buying a home. When can we expect assistance of
interest relief to Manitobans buying a home?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, that is a subject
that is under review by the Minister responsible for
Housing.

MR. D. ORCHARD: Then we can possibly expect an
announcement in the near future on that type of
assistance . . .

HON. H. PAWLEY: | wouldn't establish any date. We
are working on putting together an economic and
social thrust within the best of our means and our
commitments and that we are doing.

MR. D. ORCHARD: Mr. Chairman. | have no further
questions at the moment.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Turtle Mountain.
MR. B. RANSOM: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | realize

that the First Minister is a bit reluctant to go back and
deal with some of these statements that were made
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during the election, but on the other hand | know that
he is interested in sincerity and dispelling cynicism
thatsometimes developsinthe politicalarena. Thatis
why we are interested in questioning the commit-
ments that were made, knowing what was meant by
them and how they are intended to be carried out.
Thereare afewareasthat!| would like to give the First
Minister an opportunity to clarify for my benefit, and
perhaps for the benefit of others, justwhatwasmeant
by some of the statements which he has made.

The first one that | would like to start with, Mr.
Chairman, has to do with the deficit and the presenta-
tion of the accounts of the province. Shortly after
assumingresponsibility forgovernment, the First Min-
ister said that he expressed great concern at the size
of the projected deficit. He said or was quoted in the
paper as having said, “Certainly, the public was
misled.” Mr.Chairman, | just would like to ask the First
Minister how the public had been misled. What was
the basis for that statement?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, | certainly think
there wasnotageneral impression amongst the pub-
lic at large as to the extent of the deficit that we were
inheriting.

MR. B. RANSOM: Mr.Chairman, could |l ask the First
Minister, was he aware that the projected deficit in the
Budget of 1981-82 was $219 million?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Yes. It was considerably more
than that when we inherited government.

MR. B. RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, is the First Minister
now suggesting that the misleading of the public took
place somewhere in that range of difference between
the $219 million that was projected in the deficit and
the 252.8thatwasprojected at the end of the second
quarter, bearingin mindthatthe first Quarterly Report
has not, in our practice, included a projection of the
deficit for the year?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, dealing with the
very departmentthat we're on,thereare certain items
that hadtobe obtained by way of Special Warrant that
weren't in the printed Estimates. | made reference
earlier-1don’'t know whether the member was present
- to $700,000 by way of Advertising that was not
included in the original printed Estimates, a further
120 - a further considerable sum under Other Expen-
ditures, 2.(c). As well, there were substantial sums
under the Health Department that were not included
in the printed Estimates.

MR. B. RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, has the First Minis-
ter had an opportunity to examine the Quarterly
Financial Report for the six months, April to Sep-
tember, 19817

HON. H. PAWLEY: | have not had opportunity to
review that.

MR. B. RANSOM: Perhaps then, Mr. Chairman, |
could justdraw tothe First Minister’s attention the fact
that that Quarterly Report, which was the last one put
out by our government, projected a deficit
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of $252,800,000.00.

Mr. Chairman, | could also draw to the First Minis-
ter's attention the fact that the Budget tabled in this
House a few weeks ago, tells us now . . .

HON. H.PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, if | could just fora
moment, could | ask the honourable member when
that Quarterly Report was released to the public?

MR.B.RANSOM: Mr.Chairman,the Quarterly Report
was released to the public at approximately the end of
November, which is the normal . . .

MR. H. PAWLEY: After November 17th, yes.

MR. B.RANSOM: ...isthe normaltime for the release
of the Quarterly Financial Report and the. . .

MR. CHAIRMAN: Order, order. Order. Are you fin-
ished your comments, Member for Turtle Mountain?

MR. B. RANSOM: No.
MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Turtle Mountain.

MR. B. RANSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. | would
draw to your attention then on Page 11 of the Budget,
Mr. Chairman, where the projected deficit, which the
Minister of Finance has now informed the House what
the projected deficit will be for ‘81-82, is in fact $252
million. So the Quarterly Report projected $252.8 mil-
lion; the Minister of Finance now informs us that the
final deficit is expected to be $252 million.

Mr. Chairman, it strikes me that those two figures
are very close together, and that the talk about some
$80 million of Special Warrants being required to be
passed by the new government is simply misleading,
becausetheFirst Ministerapparently isnotaware and
perhapseven the Minister of Finance was not aware,
that in the projections for the spending of the govern-
ment, the anticipated requirements are taken into
consideration when the approval for the spending is
given by Treasury Board. The Special Warrant is not
passed until the money is actually required and any
transfers within the appropriations has taken place,
then the Special Warrant is required. That is why, Mr.
Chairman, the Quarterly Financial Report estimated a
deficit of 252.8 and the final figure is likely to be 252,
because far from not taking that 80 million into con-
sideration, the 80 million had been taken into consid-
eration before.

| would like to ask the First Minister one further
question in this area, Mr. Chairman. What does he
now anticipate that the final deficit figure for 1981-82
is going to be?

HON. H. PAWLEY: For ‘81-82, | wouldn’t be able to
provide thatinformation tonight. | would haveto . . ..

MR. B. RANSOM: Does the FirstMinister then accept
the figure which appears in the Budget which says
that the year end deficit will be $252 million?

HON.H.PAWLEY: |wouldhavetocheckthat out. Mr.
Chairman, insofar as the 252 million, the member
acknowledged himself that the quarterly statement
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did come out after the election, and there's no ques-
tion as to the fact that there were substantial sums of
monies that were not in the printed Estimates re
Health, re my own department, many other areas - |
can obtain all that - and certainly the amount of the
projection was exceeded by a substantial sum of
money, unless the member discounts $35 million, $40
million as not being a significant sum of money.

MR.B.RANSOM: Mr.Chairman, concerningthe $252
million, it is a question of whether or not the First
Minister accepts that. | see some question in his mind
now whether he accepts that or not. | think the
Finance Minister has assured us this will be the
approximate figure, but the First Minister persists, |
think asrecently as two orthree weeks ago, of usinga
figure of $300 million for the deficit for 1981-82. |
would appreciate the First Minister then examining
and looking into the facts to see whether the Finance
Minister’'s projection is correct, that the deficit will be
$252 million, or whether the figure of some $300 mil-
lion is the correct one.

Mr. Chairman, | would like to ask the First Minister
then to substantiate what he considers to be any mis-
leading statements by the previous government with
respect to the deficit. Can heclearly identify any mis-
leading information?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, first, the former
Minister of Finance ignores the fact that a once-only,
25-point-some million dollars was taken out of the
Municipal Reserve Fund. Ifthathad notbeendone, we
would have been looking at a deficit in the range of
$275 million to $280 million, 25 point-some onto 252
million.

Mr. Chairman, unfortunately the false impression
was created when the previous Conservative Gov-
ernment was elected in 1977, they accused the then
Schreyer Government of spending money like arson-
ists, and then others suggested we were spending
money like drunken sailors, and there was a greatdeal
of moral commitment certainly by way of the speeches
that were given that in some way or other the new
Conservative Government would balance the Budget
and it would run a very tight ship. This was the com-
mitment and the understanding that was given by the
then Conservative Party when it formed the govern-
ment in 1977. Unfortunately during the four-year
period of time, those commitments that were given by
the previous Conservative Government to Manito-
bans were not honoured - 1978, 1979, 1980, 1981 - we
experienced ever-increasing deficits.

Now | want to very quickly —(Interjection)— if the
Leader of the Opposition can show me any one of
those years where there wasn’t a deficit, I'd be quite
interested . . . .

HON.S.LYON: |can. Thoseweren'tincreasingdefic-
its. They were decreasing deficits . . .

MR. CHAIRMAN: Order. Order.

HON. H. PAWLEY: There is no question that at the
endofthetermofthe Conservative Government, their
deficit was a record deficit; it was higher than any-
thing that had existed prior to and including the first
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year they assumed office.

Now, Mr. Chairman, | want to emphasize a point
though, so that I'm not misunderstood. We have never
said that thereis anything wrong with deficit financing
given any economic circumstance at any particular
time as a party. It has not been our party that has
claimed there is something virtuous in a balanced
Budgetsituationregardless of the economic situation.

What we criticized was for a party to promise to
make a commitment to the public of the Province of
Manitoba that in some way or form they would ba'-
ance the Budget, that they had some sort of monopoly
on effective management of the affairs of the pro-
vince, finances of the province, and then to so com-
pletely and totally permit that expectation to deterio-
rate. Sothereis aclearphilosophic difference between
our party and the previous Conservative Government.
We never for a moment have indicated that there is
anything virtuous in a balanced Budget each and
every year.

By the way, excuse me, if | could just very very
quickly - | have the release of November 5, 1981,
dealing with the questions raised by the Member for
Pembina and in thatrelease that was issued just afew
days before the election, it states: “It is a waste of
limited provincial funds to duplicate the Federal Farm
Credit Corporation. We will provide young farmers
with MACC funds for the activity which is not ade-
quately supported by other programs. Specific aspects
of the new program will include purchases of lives-
tock, buildings, other permanent improvements, land
improvements, purchase of equipment, start-up costs
and grants for development of a farm plan. The pro-
gram will be part of a family farm act.” And | also said
here: “It willreplacethe Conservative focusonMACC
activity on loans for the purchase of farmland since
the Federal Farm Credit Corporation provides land
purchase loans.”

So to the Member for Pembina, I'm just a little sur-
prisedthatthisevening he would try to wring from me
an agreement to do the very opposite, to breach a
commitment that | gave very clearly on November 5,
1981. I'm just a little puzzled by the double standard
that the Member for Pembina seems to be injecting
into the Estimates.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Turtle Mountain.

MR. B. RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, the First Minister
tries to make this into a philosophical debate about
the pros and cons of deficits. That's not the question
at hand, Mr. Chairman.

The questionis thattherewas an allegation that the
people had been misled, and this was not even an
allegation that was madeduringthe election; thiswas
an allegation that was made after the election. The
First Minister was then the First Minister. He had an
opportunity to consult with his Minister of Finance
and with staff and he made the allegation that the
public had been misled. Now ! think that is a rather
serious charge to be made and | think it’'s one that
needs to be substantiated and so far, Mr. Chairman, |
haven't seen any substantiation presented.

He makes reference to a $25 million Special Munic-
ipal Loans Fund. Mr. Chairman, the House was never
misled about the $25 million Special Municipal Loans
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Fund. It was first raised in Public Accounts and |
believe the Member for Lac du Bonnet was there. The
Member for Seven Oaks raised the question: how
doesthegovernmentintendtotreat this $25 millionin
the Special Municipal Loans Fund? The Deputy Minis-
ter of Finance answered at the time: it would be my
intentiontorecommend tothe government that money
be tai<en into general revenue, and there the subject
dropped for the sake of Public Accounts. Subse-
quently, that was done in the Budget. It was presented
forthrightly. There was never any misunderstanding,
never any attempt to mislead anybody.

Now, the charge has been made that there was an
attempt made to mislead and | simply would like to
know, specifically, whether there were things to which
the First Minister was referring, or was he simply
engaging in allowing the electiontolapseovera little
bitinto the post-election period and perhaps his rhe-
toric had gotten away with him a bit.

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, | don't know
whether the Member for Turtle Mountain and myself
are looking at the same figures, but certainly the pro-
jection is of the Budget of 1981 and the information
that we had as of the date of the election, November
I7th, and finally the Quarterly Report, which was
issued after the election - not before the election, but
after the election. I'm not saying that the Quarterly
Report was issued at a time that it should not have
been, but certainly Manitobans were not advised dur-
ing the campaign that we are overspending by X
amount beyond that which we had anticipated during
the Budget of ‘81, that the projected deficit of X
amount is being exceeded by Y, so that Manitobans
were notaware thatthere was a substantial difference
between the budgeted deficit and the final Budget
during the campaign.

MR. B. RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, are we to assume
then that with the present government we will get an
up-date on the projected deficit of the government
perhaps every month so that we will not be in a posi-
tion of being able to say that the government was
misleading the people in terms of the . . .

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, it's our intent to
issue the Quarterly Reports as has been the practice.

MR. B. RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, | think the First Min-
ister will be aware that the first Quarterly Report
doesn’t contain the projection of the deficit. It’'s not
possible to do that in any accurate way at the end of
three months. So if he is going to pursue the same
practice aswasfollowed by the previousgovernment,
which | happen to think was a good one, the First
Minister termed that as misleading. Now, if the same
practice is going to prevail then | assume that the
same tag can be applied to the Estimate then.

HON. H.PAWLEY: Mr.Chairman, again!| mustremind
the MemberforTurtle Mountain because hemayhave
missed this information; the very department that
we're dealing with, not having to look at any other
department, we have a total of some $850,000 by
which the printed Estimates were exceeded by actual
expenditures. Advertisingalonewascloseto $700,000
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that wasn't covered in the printed Estimates that had
toberecovered by way of Special Warrant. Maybe the
Member for Turtle Mountain isn’'t conscious of that.
This is one of the smaller spending departments
alone; $125,000 that had to be obtained by way of
Special Warrant under 2.(c) in the very department
that we're dealing with. So right within this depart-
ment, we're dealing with $850,000 approximately, that
was not covered by way of printed Estimate in the
smallest department spending-wise, of the entire
government. You have that example confronting you;
the very department that's relevant to our discussion
now.

MR. B. RANSOM: |s that what the First Minister con-
siders to be misleading?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Let's deal, for instance, with this
particular item if we could - 2. dealing with Other
Expenditures: the 1981-1982 vote was 127,300; whe-
reas the year before, the level had been 225,500. We
had to Special Warrant $126,300 to bring that up with
the expenditures, where it ought to have been very,
very clear that there would have been no way that
Other Expenditures would have been halved. You
know, thisis anexamplethatyouhaverightin frontof
you in this very department without looking to any
other department.

MR.B.RANSOM: Mr.Chairman, my question thento
the First Minister is, does he consider that to be mis-
leading? Was that a misleading accounting practice,
financial practice, followed by the previous
government?

HON. H. PAWLEY: | certainly think it is very mislead-
ing if you have an expenditure in one year, that's
1980-81, the year of the election. Then when it comes
in after the election, you find you have this Special
Warrant for monies that were spent that one should
have expected would have beenspent on the basis of
the previous year's spending. | don't know what you
would call that.

MR. B. RANSOM: How much money was involved
there, Mr. Chairman?

HON.H.PAWLEY: Dealingwith this very department,
50 percent in that item alone.

There's anotheritem dealing with Advertisingwhere
we had to Special Warrant - there was two. Here I'll
give more benefit of the doubt because | don't know
whether it was, | suppose, anticipated that only 2.3
million would be needed. It turned out, | guess
because of other demands during that election year,
683,000 had to be obtained by way of Special Warrant
in order to meet the expenses from the advertising for
the fiscal year in question. So add 683,000 up, which
might be somewhat questionable as to whether it
should've been reasonably anticipated, and the
$125,000 that ought to certainly have been antici-
pated, you're looking at a substantial sum in a very
small spending department.

MR. B. RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, then what the First
Minister is referring to as misleading are items that
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have been underestimated in the estimation of
expenditures?

HON. H. PAWLEY: In the one case, | think it's quite
clear. Leave it to the member’s judgment.

MR. B. RANSOM: | wanted to know, specifically, is
that what he is referringto? Is the charge of mislead-
ing? | want to know. Is that what he's referring to, that
it's asituationwhere the spending of government was
underestimated? It subsequently turned out to be
larger. Isthat, in the First Minister’s view, misleading?

HON. H.PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, the artificial keep-
ing down of expenditure levels is misleading. People
certainly anticipated that the printed Estimates would
beroughly equivalent. Healthwasa majorareawhere
there were millions of dollars by way of Special
Warrant.

MR. B. RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, the First Minister
then is saying that the Estimates of the Health
Department were kept down artificially. Mr. Chair-
man, is the First Minister aware of what the extra
money was required for in the Health Services
Commission?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, | can get that
breakdown if it's necessary to do so. Obviously, the
Health expenditures were not accurately projected.

MR. B. RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, then is it fair to say
that it can be considered misleading if there are extra
expenditures come in this year in the Manitoba Health
Services Commission or extra money comes in forthe
settlement of the salaries of the Manitoba Govern-
ment Employees’ Association? Will that be misleading
too?

HON. H.PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, one must examine
the circumstances. We had three —(Interjection)— |
wonder if | can finish my remarks?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Order.

HON. H. PAWLEY: We had three years by which the
projected deficit was, indeed, less. In the fourth year,
an election year, the projected deficit was exceeded
considerably. That information was not found out
until after the election, contrary to what had beenthe
pattern during the first three years. Mr. Chairman, it's
rather peculiar to me, if there were three years that
there was, in fact, overstating of the deficit to be fol-
lowed by a smaller deficit than what had been antici-
pated. In the fourth year, we appear to deviate from
the pattern significantly. :

MR. B. RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, the deficit in 1977
was on Current account - it was a division between
Current and Capital - was projected to be about $25
million in the projection that was made at the time the
Budget was brought down. That is the position that
the Minister of Finance continued to put forward
through the summer and through the election, when
questioned. It subsequently came to our attention on
assuming responsibility forgovernmentthatthe pro-
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jected deficit on the current side was $125 million.
Would the First Minister consider that was misleading?

HON.H.PAWLEY: Mr.Chairman, thereareanumber
of factors that are reflected in the 1977 situation as |
recall —(Interjection)— it's the Member for Turtle
Mountain that wants to go back five years. As | recall,
certainly itwascalled misleading by the then Conser-
vative Party.

In addition, it seems to me that a great deal of the
difference consisted of miscalculation on the part »f
the Federal Government insofar as revenue flows
from the Federal Government to the province. Also,
there were monies that had to be expended because
of the unemployment situation that was developingin
‘77. That was clear on record. Programs were
announced, as | recall, for all and sundry to know that
monies had to be spent on unemployment and there
were other factors that - | regret that the Member for
Inkster is not present who had done considerable
research as to transposing that took place.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN, A. Anstett: The Member
for Turtle Mountain.

MR. B. RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, | am not debating
why these things occurred. I'm simply pointing out
that, under those circumstances, the Minister of
Finance of the day continued to insist that the pro-
jected deficit was the same as he had projected in his
Budget right through until the time of the election.

| would point out for the record, Mr. Chairman, that
during the past election, the issue was never raised
with myself as Minister of Finance as to what the
deficit was. No member of the media inquired as to
what the deficit would be and it was not a subject of
political debate during the election.

One or two other questions in respect to deficits,
Mr. Chairman. There was a leaflet put out by the
Leaderofthe New Democratic Party in Aprilof 1981 in
which he said, among other things, “Four Conserva-
tive Budgetshave produced fourdeficits compared to
only one deficit ineight NDP Budgets.” | wonder ifthe
First Minister couldtellus which yearoftheeight NDP
Budgets in the Schreyer years, in his view, had a
deficit?

HON. H. PAWLEY: | don’t have that information in
front o f me.

MR. B. RANSOM: Perhaps, Mr. Chairman, then |
couldplace it on therecordthatin1971-72, the deficit
was 16.4 million; in ‘'72-73, itwas 17.9; in '73-74, it was
4.3;in '74-75, it was 52.7 million; in '75-76, it was 93.6
million; in '76-77, it was 76.6 million and in the yearin
which we took over responsibility for government, it
was 191.3 million. —(Interjection)— yes, that's on a
combined Current and Capital.

HON.H.PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, |dowanttosay . . .

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Order. Order please. The
Member for Turtle Mountain has the floor.

MR. B. RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, that is on a com-
bined Current and Capital basis, whichis the way that
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the deficits are being calculated now. It is the only
comparable way to show figures from that period or
from the four years to our government or from the
period of this government.

WastheFirst Ministeraware atthe timethat,indeed,
there were deficits during more than one year of the
previous government, compared to the three or four
years of the Conservative Government to which he
was making a comparison at the time?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, what the Member
for Turtle Mountain hasn't pointed out, of course,
without being responded to by him from questions
that his calculations are based upon the combined
Currentand Capital. Themethodof calculating deficit
in the period 1969-77 was on a split basis, Capital and
Current. Thatwas the approach thatwasused during
that period of time. The honourable member now
can't go all the way back through the previous
Budgets and ascribe now a different deficit to each
Budget than that which wasascribed during the year
in question. We could dothat back through the Roblin
period when then Premier Roblin very adequately
defendedthe basis of ensuring that Current and Capi-
tal accounts were separated.

MR. B. RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, is the First Minister
now saying then that it's comparable to use figures
that in the one case separated out Capital from Oper-
ating and in the other case combined them? If that's
so,does he nowintendtoseparate Capital from Oper-
ating again so that he can once again show a lower
deficit for his administration as compared to the four
years of the Conservative administration where nor-
mal accounting procedures and accepted accounting
procedures for most of the provinces of Canada were
followed?

HONMN. H.PAWLEY: There has been no decisiontodo
that,butl mustsaytothemember| have considerable
sympathy for the arguments as presented by the
former Premier, Duff Roblin, as to the rationale for
separating Current and Capital accounts. It seems to
me, Mr. Chairman, that it is rather unwise to include
within the deficit the Capital portion of the deficit
which isindeed monies that are being spent, not just
for thebenefitofonecurrent year, but foranumber of
years. Now, we have noteven made any decision, but|
have been impressed by the logic that was then
expressed by the former Premier, Duff Roblin, of this
province when he explained why he felt the present
system of accounting was indeed not accurately
reflecting proper financial reporting.

MR.B.RANSOM: Mr.Chairman,doesthe FirstMinis-
ter acknowledge that the system of accounting intro-
duced by the Conservative Government was that
which was called for by the Provincial Auditor?

HON. H. PAWLEY: | am not aware whether the Pro-
vincial Auditor requested the change in 1977-78. It is
my understanding that the Provincial Auditor is pre-
pared to accept either form of accounting, depending
upon the reporting system that'’s utilized.

MR. B. RANSOM: | wish | couldreferthe First Minis-
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ter then to the Auditor's report from the years prior to
our government and to the discussion of it in Public
Accounts this year.

Mr. Chairman, the First Minister has also made
statements to the effect that the financial capacity of
the government was impaired during the four years of
the Conservative administration. | wonder if the First
Minister would elaborate a bit on that position.

HON.H.PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, thereareanumber
of areas that | would draw the honourable member’s
attention to in that respect. Firstly, they had made a
commitment that | think was seriously taken by Man-
itobans on the whole that they would be balancing the
Budget during their term mandate. That did not take
place. | wouldthink that in any assumption of respon-
sibility, acommitment of that nature being madedoes
to a considerable degree impair credibility, yes.

Secondly, thekind of programs that flowed from the
firsttwo years, atleasttwo yearsif notpartofthethird
year, of the former Conservative Government also
contributed towards an impairment of the financial
circumstance of the Province of Manitoba. A more
stimulative approach during that period of time would
have prevented some of the slide which took place
overall.

MR. B. RANSOM: Could the First Minisier give me
some indication of how the financial capacity of the
government was impaired? In what areas was the
financial capacity of the government impaired? | am
nottalking abouttheeconomy;| am talking about the
financial situation with respect to the Government of
Manitoba.

HON. H.PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, you can’t separate
the economic and the financial. The economic has an
influence upon the financial affairs of the province.
Certainly, the economic operations of the province
adversely affected the financial.

MR. B. RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, the First Minister
has said on numerous occasions since the election,
that his ability as a government to do things, to be
active and to take initiatives is impaired because the
financial capacity of the government had been
impaired by the previous administration. | am seeking
information asto how the capacity of the government
was impaired; how the government was in a less
advantageous position to respond when the New
Democrats assumed government in 1981, as com-
pared to when the Conservatives assumed responsi-
bility for government in 1977.

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, there have been
three areas that have made it much more difficult for
the new government to undertake its efforts and |
think Manitobans in general recognize the three fac-
tors that have made it much more difficult. One is the
inheritance of a very large deficit and the deficit, in
itself, I'm not criticizing the previous government for
as per my original statements, butitis a sizable and a
large deficit that the new government has inherited.
Numbertwois thefiscal transfer cutbacks and threeis
thestate of theeconomy and the reduced flow by way
of income and corporate tax revenues to the Provin-
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cial Government.

Mr. Chairman, my statements about impairment
haverelatedto all three factors: (a)thedeficitthatthe
new government inherited; (b) the very, very sharp
fiscal transfer cutbacks from Ottawa in the nature of
some $700 million more than would have been the
case under the old agreement, and (c) the sharply
reduced flow of cash as a result of the deepening
economic recession. | don’t think there is any ques-
tion that the ability of the new government to do that
which it would like to do has been impaired by these
three factors combined.

MR. B.RANSOM: Mr. Chairman,wasthe First Minis-
ter aware priorto the election, that there were likely to
be cutbacks in federal transfers?

HON. H. PAWLEY: There was speculation that there
wouldbe, as | recall. | do notrecall, Mr. Chairman, any
information as to the extent of those cutbacks at all
and | must say that | was quite surprised when Mr.
Miller returned from the Finance Ministers’ meeting
shortly after our being sworn into office and advised
us as tothe extent of the cutbacks. | would be curious
as to whether the former Minister of Finance was
aware before the election was called as to the extent of
the cutbacks. He was in a much better position to
know than those of us that were then in ®pposition.

MR. B. RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, if the First Minister
would caretorefertothe Budget of ayearago, he will
see where reference is made and a warning is given.
Thefigureisperhaps notashighbecausetheFederal
Finance Minister would not indicate until his Budget
on the 12th of November, as to what the package
would be, but there was ample warning given that
there would be cutbacks in the area of health and
post-secondary education funding from the Federal
Government. It strikes me as unusual if that should
havecomeasasurprisetothe First Minister, because |
think everyone else was aware of that, Mr. Chairman.

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, then!| . . ..

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Member
for Turtle Mountain | think . . ..

MR. B. RANSOM: l'll let the First Minister respond.

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, | indicated the
extent was a surprise. | don’t know just to what extent
the Member for Turtle Mountain was privy to more
detailed information and hard facts after the specula-
tive comments in his own Budget in the spring, what
additional information he had by the time the election
wascalled. | leave that to him if he wishes to respond.

MR. B. RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, | can tell you there
was no additional information, butit turns out thatthe
information of the projection given in the Budget of a
year ago was approximately accurate for the first year,
but not over the long run of the five years because that
wasn't known. We were speaking at that time of a
two-year cutback.

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, we would have
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beenvery happy if the projection for the first year had
indeed been all that we had to be confronted with,
rather than the $700 million for the five years that we
have short-falled from the original agreement.

MR. B. RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, the First Minister
said that the deficit which he inherited was a larger
deficit than we had inherited. Would he acknowledge
that to be comparable, to be able to weigh the one
against the other, thatit really would be necessary to
take inflation into consideration and look at the pur-
chasing value of the dollar, 1977 to 1981, and that it
should be looked at relative to the size of spending,
that sort of thing?

HON.H.PAWLEY: Mr.Chairman,there are other fac-
tors. | must say to the Member for Turle Mountain,
given the economic circumstances of 1977, as a gov-
ernment | would have preferred to have those eco-
nomic circumstances along with that deficit of ‘77 as
to the deficit that we inherited with the very grim
economic circumstances accompanying same.

MR. B. RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, it becomes more
and moreevident that perhaps the First Minister is not
especially conversant with some of the economic fig-
ures that prevailed. | could point out to him, for
instance, that in 1977 the Conference Board still esti-
mates that the growth in the Manitoba economy was
0.8 percent; whereas their most recent estimate for
1981 is 3.6 percent. | could also point out that placing
the deficit on a comparable basis in terms of making
the 1977 dollars comparable to 1981 dollars that the
deficitof252 millionin ‘81-82 putthe‘77deficiton the
same basis; it comes to 275 million. So by any kind of
reasonable measure, the deficit that we inherited in
1977 was $275 million as related to the deficit of
1981-82.

| can also point out, Mr. Chairman, that of that 275, if
you putitonthatcomparable basis, 57 percent of that
was for Current - that percentage doesn’t change no
matter whatthe figure was - 57 percentof the deficitin
1977-78 was to cover current expenditures. Of the
$252 million deficit this year, only 25 percent is to
cover Current expenditures. The deficit, as a percen-
tage of the government’s expenditure in 1977, was 12
percent. Asa percentageofexpendituresin 198(-82,
it's 10 percent. The debt, as a percentage of the gross
provincial productin 1977, was 42 percent and is now
36 percent in 1981.

So, Mr. Chairman, my question to the First Minister
is, what areas really was the government finding that
the financial situation of the government had been
impaired by the Conservative Government. Now, this
is the charge, Mr. Chairman. We didn’t hear much
about Mr. Reagan or Mr. Trudeau having an effect. It
was the Progressive Conservatives in Manitoba. Per-
haps he'd just like to clear up some of those points.

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, again | have to
repeat my earlier answer. Our reference has been
persistent throughout that the ability of the Province
of Manitoba to undertake the kind of social programs
that | think Manitobans would like to see extended
have been handicapped by way of a number of fac-
tors, a number of economic and financial factors.
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Number one, as | mentioned, is the deficit that we
inherited. Well, Mr. Chairman, by way of dollars, itis a
large deficit and again, so I'm not misunderstood, |
have never said that a deficit in itself is necessarily a
bad thing. | don't want to be misunderstood on that,
but, when you couple arecord deficit —(Interjection)—

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Order please. The
members of the Committee, please allow the First
Minister to complete his remarks.

HON. H. PAWLEY: When you couple the record dol-
lar deficit, which may not seem like a large deficit to
the Member for Turtle Mountain, with substantial fis-
cal transfer cutbacks . . .

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Order please. | rzalize
thatsome members may be concerned about the hour
and tempers may be wearing slightly, but | think the
committee would like to hear the Honourable First
Minister's answer to the question.

HON. H. PAWLEY: Coupled with the fiscal transfer
cutbacks, $700 million cutback, and then you couple
that with the decreased flow income in corporate tax
revenues and, Mr. Chairman, | want to just add to that
the uncertainty that | am sure that each Manitoban
must feelas to what will occur overtheupcomingyear
pertaining to the economic performance of the econ-
omy. There's no question that the new government is
handicapped as to presenting and deliveringupon the
kind of programs it would like to see delivered: inher-
ited deficit, fiscal transfer cutbacks, decreased flow of
revenues as a direct result of the recessionary situa-
tion which is directly attributable tothe monetary pol-
icies practiced in Ottawa, copied from Washington,
D.C.

MR. B. RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, my position simply
is, and | believe the figures show it, that the govern-
ment was in a sounder financial situation when this
New Democratic Party tookovergovernmentin 1981
than it wasin 1977. By any comparable measure, the
financial condition of the government was more
sound in 1981 than it was in 1977. The government’s
ability to act was greater than was the ability of our
government to act in 1977. The tax system in 1981 is
much more competitivethanitwasin 1977, sothereis
more opportunity for the government if they wish to
impose additionaltaxes - butif they wishtomove back
into the areas that had been vacated by the previous
government.

So,Mr.Chairman, | don’t fora minutesay that times
aren’tdifficultandthereisn’tanimpactby the transfers
from the Federal Government and that factors else-
where in the world don’t have an effect, but let's be
realistic, let’s be fair about what the facts really show
in terms of the fiscal capacity of this government to
respond.

Mr. Chairman, one of the areas that was dealt with at
great length during the election and prior to the elec-
tion was the charge by the New Democratic Party that
the Conservatives were giving away Manitoba, that
they were giving away the resources of the province. |
think that you all had seen the election material and
seen the ads showing the province being cut up and
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given out and such.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: The First Minister on a
point of order.

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Chairman, just on a point of
order, | see the Member for Turtle Mountain is enter-
ing a new area. I'm wondering, since obviously we're
not going to finish in reasonable time, if we ought not
toadjournandcomeback tomorrow afternoon. You're
entering a brand new area, | can see.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: If it's the will of the Com-
mittee, I'll entertain a motion.
Committee rise.

SUPPLY - GENERAL SALARY INCREASES

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN, P. Eyler: The Committee
will come to order. We are considering the Estimates
for General Salary Increases. Does the Minister have
an opening statement?

HON. V. SCHROEDER: Mr. Chairman, this item had
been discussed previously, briefly, under the Depart-
ment of Finance Estimates as well as the Civil Service
Commission Estimates. We've been aware of the
numbers for some time. It is an amount which was set
aside some time ago before we knew the amount of
the MGEA settlement. It was well known at the time
thatitwasprobably somewhatonthelowside. Foran
historical perspective, | wouldtell members opposite
that the last time we were in a similar position two
years ago, the previous government had estimated the
similar cost at $7.5 million.

INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: If | could interrupt pro-
ceedings before we get into this, I'd like to draw the
attention of members to a group of Vietnamese stu-
dents from Steinbach with their teacher, Mr. Jacob
Siemens, who are in the gallery to my right.

SUPPLY - GENERAL SALARY
INCREASES (Cont'd)

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: The Member for Turtle
Mountain.

MR. B. RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, I'd be interested in
hearing the Minister's explanation of just how he
arrived at the $10-million figure.

HON. V. SCHROEDER: Mr. Chairman, this amount
was arrived at in a totally arbitrary fashion before we
got into a position where we had an idea as to the
amount of the settlement. Quite frankly, | don't think
it'sany secret that we knew that the settlement would
be for more than what we have provided for in these
particular numbers and that’s why | indicated pre-
viously that, justincomparison, there was a $7,500,000
amount estimated two years ago.

MR. B. RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, | believe that the
Minister had said at some time previously that the $10

million would represent approximately 3.5 percent of
the salary of the MGEA.

HON. V. SCHROEDER: Yes, that would be approxi-
mately the amount. The total salaries for MGEA
members for'82-83 prior to theincrease was expected
tobe $333 million; $10 million would be somewhere in
the neighbourhood of 3.5 percent of that.

MR. B. RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, | believe then that
the increase, if the MGEA accepts the present prop-
osal, will be approximately 13percent onthe average?

HON. V. SCHROEDER: Yes, Mr. Chairman, that's
correct and | know the member is wondering how
we've arrived at a net additional cost to the province of
between $5.4 million and $8.7 million, so | might as
well explain that. | am advised by my department that
there is an estimate of the staff turnover, retirements,
positions not being filled as early as anticipated and
othersuch circumstances which, ifthenormalcourse
of events is followed, will result in an average annual
vacancy rate of somewhere between 7 and 10 percent.
There is some staff turnover, in fact, built into the
department’'s budgets and therefore the rate used is
between 7 and 8 percent which works out to between
$23.3 million and $26.6 million offthe gross cost of the
settlement.

That doesn’t mean that the settlement doesn't cost
that much, it just means that in terms of additional
funds above what we've already voted, the $333 mil-
lion, plusthe $10 millionwe're talkingaboutnow-and
we'll talk what we need in addition to that later - is
somewhere between $5.4 and $8.7 million.

MR.B.RANSOM: Doesany kind of freezeexistin the
Civil Service on positions now?

HON. V. SCHROEDER: Thereis nofreeze of which |
am aware. —(Interjection)— well, Mr. Chairman, it
may well be that in certain Crown corporations, in
certain other operations, there might be something
temporary. | do know that each position is being
looked at veryvery carefully before it is filled. In my
department, I've held a number of positions open for
quite some time while | am reviewing those and |
would be surprised if there weren't those positionsin
eachdepartmentaswearelookingoverinwhatdirec-
tion we expect our departments to head.

MR. B. RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, the Minister makes
reference to Crown corporations. Is he indicating that
some Crown corporations are included in this figure?

HON. V.SCHROEDER: No, Mr. Chairman.

MR. B. RANSOM: Then | assume that any reference
to Crown corporations was simply a bit of extraneous
information intended to throw us off any trail, Mr.
Chairman.

HON. V. SCHROEDER: | just want to give you as
much information as possible.

MR. B. RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, if, in fact, there was
a payroll of $333 million and there's a 13-percent

3136



Monday, 7 June, 1982

increase, that comes to approximately $43 million.
The Minister is telling us that really it isn’t going to
cost $43 million. it’s only going to cost somewhere
between $15.4 million and $18.7 millionin total. Now, |
assume, Mr. Chairman, that in the $333 million last
year, the Civil Service was also running at a vacancy
rate somewhere close to the figure that exists at the
moment. Is the Minister suggesting then that year
after year after year when the settlement is voted that
the figure to achieve that settlement, the cash figure to
achieve that settlement, is going to be somewhere .n
the range of a third of the total dollars that would, on
the surface, seem to be required?

HON. V. SCHROEDER: Mr. Chairman, just for exam-
ple, twoyearsago the settlement was -1 don’t have the
exact numbers - but it was in the range, | believe, of
more than $20 million, certainly. The net impact, after
the $7.5 million which had been voted in addition, was
an approximate additional $7.5 million of Special War-
rants in that particular case. So this is something that
isn’tunusual. Itis something that has happenedin the
pastandit’'ssomethingthat's happeningnow. | amnot
suggesting that the settlementisn’t costing the kind of
money that the member is talking about, although my
figures show $42 million which would indicate that it
would be just a touch —(Interjection)— I'm sorry.
Actually, | had somebody do it for me and usually
they're right. | hope they are right tonight.

So my staff tells me that, based on previous years
and not on some change in policy that might be in
existence or mightbeexpectedtobe putin existence
between now and the end of this fiscal year, we can
expect underutilization of the amounts already voted,
of in the range from $23.3 mitlion to $26.6, and if you
deduct that from the $42 million, that leaves some-
where between $18.7 millionand $15.4 million that we
would be short. We are tonight talking about the other
$10 million, which brings us down to between $5.4
million and $8.7 million.

MR.B.RANSOM: Justsothatlam absolutely certain
lunderstand that, we're talking about atotal 10 million
plus another 5.4 million to 8.7 million and, Mr. Chair-
man, there is some problem with that, because it is not
at all clear to methatitis possible to make thatkind of
settlement and continue year after year to be able to
have a dollar figure that is that much less than the
settlement figure would seem to call for. Mr. Chair-
man, if | can refer back to the statement which was
made when the Estimates were tabled in February of
1981 - they were tabled by a Finance Minister that |
generally regard as being reliable - and the quotation
was “For the information of members, it is estimated
that general salary increases next year in excess of
those resulting from promotions, increments and
other adjustments, will total approximately $20 mil-
lion more than the $7.5 million contingency amount
included in the 1980-81 Estimates.”

Mr. Chairman, last year, because there was an
agreement in place already and we were going into
the second year of a two-year agreement, we did not
use the method of putting in a contingency amount
because we knew what the actual amount would be.
Mr. Chairman, the comparable amount of money
then, according to that quotation which, as the Minis-
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ter knows, would be provided by the departmental
staff, was $27.5 million to accommodate a smaller
percentage increase on a smaller base.

Now, the Minister is telling us that with a 13 percent
increase on a larger base, he's going to project a
settlement that will cost the taxpayers in the range of
$15.4 million to $18.7 million. Mr. Chairman, there is
something that doesn’t wash there; something has
changed; the system of calculating it has changed.
The government has placed a freeze on hiring, or
some kind of factors in the equation have changed,
because last year the cost was $27.5 million, a com-
parable figure. There are approximately $10 million
more. Could the Minister give us any indication that
might have been made to him of anything that could
account forthat kind of difference?

HON. V. SCHROEDER: Mr. Chairman, | know of no
changesin calculation. There are no freezes in effect
of which | am aware and, in fact, | would have to say
that probably the very same computers and individu-
als operating those computers are the ones who have
been giving me the numbers who were giving that
previous Minister of Finance the numbers a year ago.

MR. B. RANSOM: Mr. Chairman, | would like to see if
the Minister would undertake to get an explanation
from the staff in view of the seemingly conflicting
positions in the presentation of information that was
put forward, because $10 million is not exactly pea-
nuts. That's a fairly significant amount of money. The
Minister of Agriculture probably could have made
something worthwhile for hisinterest rate program or
hisbeefprogramif he had that kind of money and was
able tolisten to the people out there in the country that
might be on the receiving end of it. So perhaps the
Minister would agree to undertake that.

Also, Mr.Chairman, during the Minister’s Estimates
review in the Department of Finance, the Minister
undertook to provide answers to a rather significant
question in terms of presentation of information on
growth rates of the provincial economy; how the
growth rate figures, from the prospectus filed in June
tothe prospectus filed in December, had changed in
some cases by 100 percent moving from 1.4to 2.8 or
vice versa, that sort of thing. The Minister had under-
taken at that time, to get a detailed explanation of why
wesaw those changes. Perhaps he could give me an
indication now how he is progressing with that.

HON. V. SCHROEDER: Mr. Chairman, just first to
answer the second question. My recollection is that
we did, in fact, deal with that during the Finance Esti-
mates. | did explain the background to that to the
honourable member and just going from memory
now, my recollection is that the new numbers which
the member showed me and | hadn’t noticed pre-
viousty were as a result of some changes in the local
system. | can't recall the specific changes. | do recall,
however, that!'ve mentioned previously that they had
been examined by the peconle involved in New York
andthey weresatisified with those particularexplana-
tions. That may not satisfy the Member for Turtle
Mountain. Quite frankly, | can’t say that | blame him
very much. | will get that information. | don't know
whether we can get it this evening, but if that is possi-



Monday, 7 June, 1982

ble then certainly I'll get the paper back on it and
explain it again.

With respecttothe first portion and going back two
years, there was a $7.5 million item referred to in the
Estimates and then, later on, therewere a further $7.5
million required for, as | understand it, the total set-
tlement including MGEA and those who are outside
the contract. That would have amounted to $15 mil-
lion on a total of - | don’'t know what, $25 million? -
whatever. This time we're talking about - I've already
given the numbers in terms of MGEA, I'm told that the
figure of 27.5 million, 20 plus 7.5 referred to in 1981,
was a gross cost of the settlement. The $27.5 million
was reduced by surpluses resulting in a figure of
approximately $15 million; $7.5 million provided from
the Supply Voteand the balance from Special Warrant.

MR. B.RANSOM: The Minister said thatit wasagross
figure that was included in last year. It was, in my
understanding, included in the total spending Esti-
mates of the department and contributed to the pro-
jected deficit of $219 million. In his information which
the Minister received, does he have any indication of
how that could be reconciled then with the way that
it's being put forward this year?

HON.V.SCHROEDER: No, Mr.Chairman, I'm simply
toldthatfigure whichthehonourable member referred
to earlier had been, first of all, a gross cost and it had
been reduced by surpluses - | take itthose are within
the various departments - resulting in a figure of
approximtely $15 million.

MR.B.RANSOM: Mr.Chairman,ifithadbeenreduced
by a further amount at the end of the year, then |
assumethat’'s money that would lapse. Has the Minis-
ter now then made further adjustments in his projec-
tionssothat he'stakingintoconsiderationanamount
of money which he expectsto lapse if that is the case?
It may well work out that way, but | would suggest that
itis, in fact, a change in the way the figures are being
presented.

HON. V. SCHROEDER: Mr. Chairman, again, itis my
understanding - we're just talking about 1981 - in
1981, we didn’t have a settlement. Soto go backto a
year that was similar to this one, you would havetogo
backto 1980. Intheyear 1982,as| hadindicated, there
is an expectation at this time that of the amounts voted
in the various Estimates, including the $10 million
we'retalkingabouttonight,anamount of-1don’thave
the number just on top here again - somewhere in the
area of $22 million or $23 million would not have been
used withouttheincreaseinsalary. In addition tothat,
we are asking for the $10 million, leaving somewhere
between $5 million and $8 million as the amount in
additionthatwewillrequire lateron. Ifthatisachange
from the method of calculation in 1980, then | wasnot
aware that it was a change in method from then.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: The Member for Morris.

MR. C. MANNESS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I'd like
to ask the Minister for further clarification using the
same numbers that he, in fact, has given us. You
seemed to indicate that subtracting the 8-percent fig-
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ure, which he claims is an unused portion of those
funds directed towards government employees, sub-
tract that number from a 13 percent, you come out
with a difference of 5. If you apply that 5 percent
againstthetotalbase of $333 million, youcome outto
somewhere around $16.5 million. | realize that’s not
the approach probably used or is it?

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: The Minister of Finance.

HON. V. SCHROEDER: If | could just go over that
again. We startoffwith, before anincrease in salaries,
an expected salary expense of $333 million, which is
in the Estimates plus the $10 million we have here,
$343 million, then we expect that as a result of staff
turnover, retirements and postions not being filled as
early as anticipated, in the area of between 7 and 8
percent will be coming off of that amount. That's
where we take between 23.3 and 26.6 off of the $333
million and you can work your way down from there.

MR. C. MANNESS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, that’s
exactly what | did, as a matter of fact, and like the
Minister claims, the 8 percent on that figure of now
$343 million does come outto $27 million roughly or
somewhere in that area. Of course, subtracting that
$27 million from the increase resulting from a 13 per-
cent increase on the base of some $43 miltion comes
to the $16 million, $17 million figure. | realize that’s
how it was done, but the same result, you can also
achieve that same end by subtracting 8 percent, |
submit, 8 percent from 13 percent and taking 5 per-
cent over the base which also gives you $16.5 million,
$17 million. The result is the same.

Now the question | pose is that obviously then for
another year, for ‘83-84 if, in fact, the cost of living - |
can’'t remember exactly what the agreed-upon terms
areforthesecondyearofthisagreement, whetheritis
acostoflivingplus 1.5, think that'sit. Ifindeed that’s
the case, then if we can bring inflation down in this
country to 10 percent, then | would assume forrough
calculation purposes that the increase in next year’s
Estimates would be, using the same logic that the
Minister has given us, some 12 percent minus 8, or 4
percent on the new base. Wouldthatlogic still fallinto
place? If that is the case, what the Minister is then
telling us is that if ever we bring inflation below 8
percent that there will never be an increase to the
base. Can he confirm or deny that?

HON. V. SCHROEDER: Mr. Chairman, | wish that
wonderful day would come. | would point out to the
member however, that although it may have worked
this time in terms of what he’s done, he’s used a com-
pletely different formulato arrive at the same number
and thenwhathe’ssayingisthattherefore this differ-
ent formula would work a year from now. | have no
idea; | wouldn’t want to warrant his formula at all. it
may work; it may not. Next year we will be coming
forward with Estimates of spending for Civil Service
salaries which would be taking into account the 333
million, the 10 million and the 6 to 8 million and,
hopefully, inflation will be at 7 percent so we would
add on, | would presume, 8.5 percent. | suppose that
there would be some amount of attrition again next
year off that total amount of increase, because there
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will be retirements, there will be various other items
occurring, but | certainly wouldn't say that you can
take 5 percent off. because the logic of that would be
that at some point where you had no inflation - well, |
would say, if you have no inflation and no wage
increases - then in all likelihood, you would have
probably some fluctuations from year to year because
of your ups and downs in terms of the numbers of
positions being filled and where people are on the
Civil Service ladder in a particular year. We're no'
saying that each year you're going to have a certa'n
number of people in a certain position, but what the
Finance people havedone is projected historical data
forward and it appears so far to have worked.

MR. C. MANNESS: Well, Mr. Chairman, | submit
there’'s nothing outlandish about the formula I've
used. There's nothing really different or completely
out of line withit at all. Idon’t care what base you use.
If, in fact, 8 percent of that appropriation is not being
used for whatever reason and the cost of inflation is
below 8 percent, then there should be no addition to
the base. It'sjust soundlogic.It’'sbeyond mathematics.

Not knowing the history ¢f what the Member for
Turtle Mountain indicated was the approach or the
techniques used in other years, | suppose |, again,
have to ask the question whether thereis a new con-
cept being brought into this whole area or whether
there's a new accounting technique?

HON. V. SCHROEDER: Mr. Chairman, there are no
changes this year in terms of accounting or number-
ing from previous years. | should say again that the
estimating process as well with respectto lapses, and
lapses have always been incorporated in fiscal year
projections, the estimating process this year will not
be handled any differently than in past years. Sur-
pluses were employed previously and | understand
thatis standard procedure. Surpluseswereemployed
previously to reduce the gross MGEA salary require-
ments and lapses have ranged from 50 million to 60
million on average, buthave been as high as some $80
million to $85 million and | take it those are total
lapses.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: The Member for Virden.

MR. H. GRAHAM: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr.
Chairman, I've listened to the explanations given by
the Minister of Finance. I've listened to the questions
askedby theHonourable Member for Turtle Mountain
andthe Honourable Member for Morris and this figure
of 8 percent keeps cropping up from various sources,
from the Minister, from the Member for Turtle Moun-
tain, the Member for Morris, and | think there is a
logical reason for it.

Wearenow seeing the government negotiating with
the MGEA who aregoingtothe membership to ask for
a vote and whether or not to accept this wage pack-
age, butthe Ministeristelling us tonight thatthere will
be an 8 percent reduction. The only way that's going
tooccuris by massive firings assoon as this Legisla-
tureceasestosit and thatisthe waythat heisgoingto
accomplish that 8 percent reduction. If there's a
changein that, let him tell us that now, but the indica-
tions are certainly there that if they are going to
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change it, it's going to be because of seniority and
various other aspects, but obviously they're going to
bring that figure down so it fits into their projections
that they're putting forward here andthe only way that
canoccur is by areduction in seniority and a massive
change in the Civil Service in this province.

So | suggest to all members of the Manitoba Gov-
ernment Employees’ Associationto be careful because
this Minister has served warning on this House tonight
that he is intending to live within the figures that he
has projected here which don’t make sense unless
there is that massive change in personnel which
would be the only logical rationale for the figures that
he has produced.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: 1.—pass. Resolution No.
129.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that there be
granted to Her Majesty a sum not exceeding $10 mil-
lion for General Salary Increases, estimated cost of
General Salary Increases in several Departments of
Government for the fiscal year ending the 31st day of
Marzch, 1983.

That concludes the Estimates for tonight.

Committee rise.






